










































































2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

The Academy Charter School 
Hempstead 

2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
PROGRESS REPORT 

Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute on: 

August 16, 2021 

By Wayne Haughton 

117 North Franklin Street 
Hempstead, NY 11550 

516 408 2200 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead 2020 21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 1 of 46 



         

2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Wayne Haughton, Executive Directory prepared this 2020 21 Accountability Progress Report on 
behalf of the board of trustees: 

Board Position 
Name Office (e.g. chair, treasurer, Committees (e.g. finance, 

secretary) executive) 
Robert Stewart Chair Executive, Academics, 

Operations & Technology 
Dawn West Vice Chair Committees 

Stephen Rowley Treasurer Finance, Operations & 
Technology 

Peter J. Goodman Trustee People & Legal 
Roderick Roberts Trustee Operations & Technology, 

People & Legal 
Claudette Harrison Trustee Academics, People & Legal 
Beth McKenzie Trustee Executive, People & Legal, 

Operations & Technology 
Carol Beckles Secretary Executive, People & Legal 
Maria Graham Trustee Academic & Finance 
Dale James Treasurer Executive, Finance 

Dorothy Burton Trustee Academics 
Rodger Ball Trustee Academics 

Mr. Haughton has served as the Executive Director since 2012. 
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SCHOOL OVERVIEW 

K-2. Located in Hempstead, NY, a school district with approximately 81% free and reduced-price 
lunch students, The Academy continues to successfully serve a student population with a large 
percentage of English language learners, special education students, and economically disadvantaged 
students. To further the mission, The Academy expanded to serve 1,719 students in grades K-12 in the 
2019-2020 school year. 

The Academy improves student academic achievement by focusing on the development of three 

development, and fostering a lifelong behavior of giving back to the community. The Academy strives 
to have its children learn, lead, and serve. 

The Academy : 

To create world class scholars who will learn today, lead tomorrow and serve in the future. Key Design 
Elements 

The nine key design elements educational plan are intent to provide our students across various ability 
levels to achieve success, understanding their strengths and unique abilities, and develop the self-
discipline and confidence required to excel in any environment. 

program, and support for students in a three-hour Saturday school program and during the 
winter/spring/summer breaks. Moreover, select high school students attend a six-week program geared 
towards preparation for Regents exam. 

Elementary School class has 25 to 27 students two 
adults in every classroom. This allows for greater focus on student support including small groups and 
individualized instruction. 

Standard Based Curriculum- Core content subjects, New York State Next Generation Learning 
Standards. 

eachers. This includes a two-week pre-service 
teacher induction and training. Full time Math and English Language coaches in grades K-8, and 
content specific departmental chairs in the high school. 

8 receive ongoing instruction and participate in 
discussions related to key core values geared towards character development using selected 
curriculum. 

include Renascence STAR Read & Math (K-8), Fountas and Pinnell (K-5), NWEA MAP (High 
School), Las Link (ESL), and other Interim Assessments aligned to New York State assessments (3-
8), and Regents Exams, Practice SAT & ACT. These assessments allow for measuring student progress 
and inform the instructional program. 

Remediation & Enrichment- There is ongoing support for students during the school day and after 
school. There is also accelerated course work for middle school and high school. 
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are required to complete service learning and 
volunteering projects. 

Technology -S.T.E.M- Schoolwide use of integrating technology as a learning tool and specific STEM 
instruction in grades K-12. 

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 
In the table below, provide the BEDS Day enrollment for each school year. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total 

2016 17 107 108 107 108 77 81 80 83 77 117 945 

2017 18 100 109 110 104 109 78 82 79 87 117 109 1084 

2018 19 222 107 103 108 108 108 87 82 84 144 104 104 1361 

2019 20 148 230 118 119 119 121 125 122 114 169 142 95 94 1717 

2020 21 152 152 230 125 125 123 122 122 125 108 179 123 92 1782 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade. For example, the 2017 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2017 18 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the annual enrollment determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
2020 21 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason. (See New York State Education SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 
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Fourth Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the 

Fourth Year 

Number 
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 
June 30th 

2018 19 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A N/A 
2019 20 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
2020 21 2017 18 2017 94 0 94 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade. Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma granting 
program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Total 
Graduation 
Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

N/A 
2019 20 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
2020 21 2017 18 2017 94 0 94 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of the 

Fourth Year 
(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 
Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

2018 19 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fifth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the 
Fifth Year 

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 
Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 
Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2018 19 2014 15 2014 N/A N/A N/A 
2019 20 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A N/A 
2020 21 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
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GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

All students at the school will graduate from high school 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation. The measure 
requires that, based on the promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

ve the goal of 75% promotion, with the 2019 
cohort 4.5 percentage points below the 75% goal. The 2020 cohort did exceed the goal of 75% by 

March 2020 may be attributable to the school 
missing its promotion goal. 

Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts 
Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2020 21 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number in 
Cohort during 

2020 21 

Percent 
promoted 

2019 173 70.1% 
2020 106 76.4% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which has 
significantly limited the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure 
student accountability for learning. The percent promoted for the 2019 cohort saw a slight increase 
(0.1 %) in the 2020 2021 school year from 2019 2020 school year. Additionally, the 2020 cohort 
percent promoted after the first year exceeded the same of the 2019 cohort by 2.2%. Prior to the 
transition to remote learning, the school had met its promotion goal every year. We expect that 
the increasing trend in percent promoted will continue with the incoming cohorts as we return to 
in person learning. 
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Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage. The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort. 

As a result of the Board of guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 2020 21, for the most recent second year 
cohort schools should report the percentage of students who either passed or were exempted 
from at least three exams. In August of 2021, the 2019 cohort will have completed its second 
year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy achieved its goal of 75% of students achieving proficiency on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation. The 2017, 2018, and 2019 cohorts 
exceeded this goal by 6, 10.9, and 14 percentage points, respectively. 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Passing at 
Least Three 

Regents (including 
exemptions) 

2017 2018 19 100 81.0% 
2018 2019 20 142 85.9% 
2019 2020 21 173 90.1% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The Academy achieved its goal of 75% of students achieving proficiency on at least three different New 
York State Regents exams required for graduation. The 2017 cohort exceed this goal by 6%. The 2018 
cohort exceeded this goal by 10.9% and the 2019 cohort exceeded this goal by 14%. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts: those who entered the 9th 

grade as members of the 2017 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2016 cohort and graduated five years later. These data reflect August graduation 
rates. At a minimum, these students have passed or been exempted from five Regents exams 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead 2020 21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 8 of 46 



2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

required for high school graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or 
met the requirements for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.1 

The graduation requirements appear in this document above the graduation goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead has exceeded its four year graduation goal for its first 
two graduating classes. The 2016 cohort exceeded the goal by 18.6% and the 2017 cohort exceeded 
the goal by 17.6%. By the end of its fifth year 100% of the 2016 cohort had graduated. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 93.6% 
2017 2020 21 94 92.6% 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2014 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2015 2019 20 N/A N/A 

2016 2020 21 95 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which had 
significantly limited the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure 
student accountability for learning. To compensate for many of the challenges brought about by virtual 
instruction, the school offered academic support opportunities in mathematics, English Language Arts, 
science, and social studies after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter and Spring recess. Also, a 
majority of the 2017 cohort opted in to in person instruction beginning in February 2021. 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 

of comparison. Given that district results for the current year are generally not available at this 

1 The guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple pathways/. 
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time, for purposes of this report schools should include the 2019 20 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the 2020 21 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead met this goal based upon available data for the 2016 
cohort where it exceeded the Hempstead School District by 15.3%. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year 
Charter School Hempstead 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 536 62.5% 
2016 2019 20 95 93.6% 479 78.3% 
2017 2020 21 94 92.6% N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Based on the available data and the relatively consistent percent graduating in the 2017 cohort in 
comparison with the 2016 cohort, we anticipate that the 2017 cohort will exceed that of the Hempstead 
School District. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students. Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment. For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple 
pathways/. The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates bellow. 

As a result of the Board of guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 2020 21, students planning to take a 
pathway examination during those cancelled dates would be exempted from the requirement. 
For purposes of this measure, only report results for students with valid scores for any pathway 
exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

graduation pathway exceeded the goal of a 75 
percent graduation rate. 
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Percentage of the 2017 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type 

Exam 

Number of 
Graduation Cohort 
Members Tested 

(a) 

Number Passing or 
Achieving Regents 

Equivalency 

(b) 

Percentage Passing 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

Additional Social Studies 94 89 94.7% 
Regents 

Additional Math or Science 94 92 97.9% 
Regents 

Overall 94 94 100% 

Pathway Exam Passing Rate 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort Designation School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Passing a Pathway 
Exam 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 96.8% 
2017 2020 21 94 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 
The 2017 cohort achieved all, but one of the measures of this Accountability Plan goal. 
75% of the scholars in first and second year did not earn at least 5. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high 
school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 
needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

Not Met 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the 
completion of their second year in the cohort. 

Met 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

Met 
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Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 

Absolute 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment Met 

required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

The teachers work with instructional leadership to align course goals with student achievement 
data collected during previous administration of Regents examinations. Students requiring 
academic supports, based on Regents examination data, qualify and receive academic intervention 
services. Additional learning time and academic intervention services is provided in school, after 
school, on Saturdays, and during the Summer months. 

The school has also departmentalized instruction and made provisions for instructional coaching to 
include content leads and two Assistant Principals. Assistant Principals have been given specific 
content areas of instructional oversight and work with content leads to support student 
achievement through instructional practice. 

To ensure on time graduation for scholars, the school provides curriculum and support for students 
to complete Regents examination requirements by the conclusion of their 11th grade year. For 
students requiring additional assistance in meeting the graduation requirements on time, the 
school provides additional learning time and academic intervention services in school, after school, 
on Saturdays, and through credit recovery programming. 

Further, the counselors monitor student progress toward graduation regularly. They work 
with school principal, director of secondary education, assistant principals, students and families to 
identify the supports needed to assist students in graduating on time. 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

All students will be prepared to attend college. 

Scholars at The Academy Charter High School are supported throughout the entirety of the college 
application process. The school year starts with college counselor and family meetings for each 
student. Next, students are given expectations for what to expect through the school year. This 
includes, gauging initial interests, creating a list of colleges, determining eligibility for financial aid 
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and opportunity programs, and setting the scope of support the college counselor will provide. 
Students then meet with the college counselor for the duration of the year in small groups. During 
the student/counselor meetings, students are encouraged to build balanced college lists, complete 
their personal statement, and apply to CUNY, SUNY, and private/public out of state schools. 
Families are welcomed to meet with the college counselor to obtain assistance with completing 
financial aid forms such as the FAFSA, TAP, and CSS Profile, as well as any additional opportunity 
program and scholarship applications students may need to complete. The school will continue to 
support our families throughout the decision making and college commitment process by hosting 
financial aid review workshops and individualized sessions to support families in making informed 
decisions about the future college matriculation. In our first year, close working relationships 
with were established between The Academy and colleges such as Nassau Community College, 
SUNY Stony Brook University, SUNY Brockport, SUNY University at Albany and the University of 
Rochester.. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

Passing an Advanced Placement exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate exam; 

Passing a College Level Examination Program exam; 

Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; 

Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation; or, 

A different school created indicator approved by the Institute. 

METHOD 

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework. The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not. For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option. The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage. Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant indicators, and the overall percentage achieving any indicator. 

For the 2020 2021 academic year, the Academy continued a partnership with Molloy College to 
offer college credit for courses provided to high school scholars on our campus. Courses were 
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taught by instructors hired by the Academy and vetted and approved by Molloy College faculty. 
Participating scholars received 3 [or 4] credits (from Molloy College) for completion of the college 
course with a grade of C or higher. Scholars had the opportunity to participate in the following 
courses: 

ENG 1100 College Composition (3 cr.): College Composition seeks to initiate a dialogue 
among students that leads them to hone skill development by moving beyond their own 
"personal" position: the readings and classroom discussions give the sense that they are 
entering an ongoing conversation of consequence. Students are therefore required to 
integrate the thoughts and words of other writers of the class texts, online databases, 
other print and media sources and oral exchange into their own essays using the 
appropriate citing mechanism. Both in relation to their own experience and to a text or 
set of texts, student writers will learn how to articulate and develop a sophisticated 
argument within a specific rhetorical situation. 

POL 1010 American National Government (3 cr.): This course provides students with an 
overview of the American system of government which examines the impact of public 
opinions, group interests, and organizations on the institutions of American government. 
Particular attention is focused on issues which relate to the politics of public policy and 
the decision making process. The nature of American democracy is examined and critically 
analyzed. 

Drawing (3 cr.): Drawing is an introductory studio drawing course with 
emphasis on learning to see and developing basic drawing skills using various media by 
employing fundamental design and composition concepts. In addition to technical skills, 
an exploration of creative thinking, problem solving, and critical analysis will be studied. 
During the semester, students will explore different drawing techniques and media. 
Students will be encouraged to develop an expression of individual style. This is a hands 
on art class in which you will be exposed to the basic principles of drawing. We will work 
from observation in order to translate three dimensional objects and space onto a two 
dimensional surface. Drawing is a way of seeing that should be developed in an 
increasingly personal way as the student works through the semester. 

ART 1020 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2017 cohort did not achieve its goal of having 75 percent of graduating students from the 
2017 cohort demonstrating preparedness for college 
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Percentage of the 2017 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator 

Indicator 

Number of 
Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

Number who Achieved 
Indicator 

Passing AP Exam with 3 37 19 51.4% 
or Higher 

Passing College Level 40 31 77.5% 
Course 

Achieving the college and 76 18 23.7% 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT 

Earning a Regents 87 51 58.6% 
diploma with advanced 

designation 

Overall 87 58 66.7 

Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As shown in the table below. The 2017 performance on this goal was 5 percent better than 
the 2016 cohort. 

Cohort Number of Graduates Number who Achieved Percentage of Graduates 
who Attempted the Indicator who Achieved Indicator 

2016 

Indicator 

94 58 61.7% 

2017 87 58 66.7% 

To achieve this goal in the future, the school has provided and will increase opportunities for 
students to participate in Advanced Placement (AP) and college level courses. The school currently 
offer the following AP Courses: Computer Science Principles, English Literature and Composition, 
English Language and Composition, Psychology, World History, and Calculus AB. The Academy also 
offers the following college courses for credit through partnership with Molloy College: Drawing, 
American National Government, and College Composition. To support students in achieving the 
college readiness benchmark on the SATs, we offered SAT prep (in school). We also implemented a 
peer mentoring and tutoring program after school to provided additional one on one academic 
support. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index for the Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress set forth in the ESSA accountability system. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 
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Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of 
Total Cohort. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college. Schools track and report the percentage of fourth 
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four year college program in the school 
year following graduation. Schools should update and confirm data for Cohorts prior to 2020 21 
and provide preliminary matriculation data for 2017 Cohort. It may be necessary for schools to 
provide updated data to the Institute when National Student Clearinghouse or other data sources 
become available later in the school year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 75% of graduating students matriculating into a college or 
university in the year after graduation by five percentage points for the 2016 Cohort and by 25 
points for the 2017 Cohort. 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Cohort Graduation Year 

Number of 
Graduates 

(a) 

Number Enrolled 
in 2 or 4 year 
Program in 

Following Year 
(b) 

Matriculation 
Rate 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 76 80.0% 
2017 2020 21 87 87 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The 2017 matriculation rate for the 2017 cohort exceeded that of the 2016 cohort by 20%. We will 
continue to implement a robust college preparation, beginning in the first year of each cohort 
program targeted to support scholars as they matriculate through high school. To support these 
endeavors, we have added an Early College Counselor whose primary focus will be implementing 
curriculum and programs for scholars in their first, second, and third year. A College and Career 
Placement officer will work with scholars in the fourth year of their cohort. 
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SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 
Present a narrative providing an overview of which measures the school achieved, as well as an 
overall discussion of its attainment of this Accountability Plan goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible 
indicators of college readiness. 

Not Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that state MIP set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that of the Total Cohort. 

N/A 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. Met 

[Write in optional measure here] 

ACTION PLAN 

To achieve this goal, the school will increase opportunities for students to participate in Advanced 
Placement (AP) courses in addition to the opportunities provided for college coursework. We will 
offer AP Statistics and AP Spanish Language and Culture in addition to coursework offered during 
the 2020 2021 academic year. To support students in achieving the college readiness benchmark on 
the SATs, we will continue to offer SAT prep. We also will continue to offer additional one to one 
tutoring (including peer tutoring) for students in preparation for Regents examinations. 

GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: English Language Arts 
All students at the school will be proficient in the reading and writing of the English language: 

BACKGROUND 

The Academy Charter School recognizes that curriculum, instruction and assessment must be 
dynamic through this period. In evaluating the strengths of our current curriculum and the needs of 
our varying student populations, we recognize that modifications would be required. Some 
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The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in English 
Language Arts. Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, 
extended school week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school 
program. Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The State 
Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percentage of the Accountability 
Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students achieving at least Level 4 among 
the students who sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter High School met this goal for 2017 cohort with 75% of the cohort 
achieving this indicator. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort2 

Cohort 
Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Scoring at 

Least Level 4 
(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 NA N/A N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 2 45 48.4% 
2017 2020 21 94 74 15 75% 

2 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

During the third year of the 2017 cohort, 21% of the cohort sat for the January 2020 Regents 
administration of the English common core exam. The remaining 79% of the cohort was scheduled 
to take the English common core regents examination during the June 2020 Regents administration 
period, which was suspended by the NYSED due to the COVID 19 pandemic. Of the 21% of scholars 
in the 2017 cohort who sat for the Regents examination, only 3 scholars were not proficient in the 
8th grade and one of the three scholars (33.3%) achieved at least a level 4 which fell short of the 
target by 42%. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 0 5 26.3% 
2017 2020 21 36 33 1 33.3% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 4 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 
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Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In their fourth year, 100% of the students in the 2017 cohort who sat for the Regents English 
common core exam and were not proficient in 8th grade achieved at least a level 3. This exceeded 
the goal by 25%. Due to the cancellation of multiple Regents examination administrations, 3 of the 
36 scholars in the 2017 cohort who were not proficient in 8th grade, sat for the Regents English 
common core exam. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 0 14 70% 
2017 2020 21 36 33 3 100% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 3 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The Regents English common core exam for the 2020 2021 academic year was solely offered in 
June 2020 by the NYSED. Due to the COVID 19 pandemic, participation in the Regents examination 
administration periods for the June 2021 period. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
The Academy has achieved all but one measure of this Accountability Plan goal. The school did not 
achieve the goal that At least 50% of the 2017 cohort who were not proficient in 8th grade did not 
meet or exceed Common Core expectations. 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead 2020 21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 27 of 46 



2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in English 
Language Arts. Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, 
extended school week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school 
program. Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead 2020 21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 28 of 46 













2020 21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in Mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. 
The State Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as 
scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents 
Common Core mathematics exams. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability 
Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for any mathematics exam 
but were scheduled to sit for one during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam requirement as well as the percentage of students achieving at least 
Level 4 among the students who sat for any exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 65% of students scoring at or above a performance level 4 by 
9.1%. 2017 cohort exceeded the 2016 cohort by 44%. The school provided additional opportunities 
for targeted academic support in mathematics after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter 
recess, Spring recess, and during our six week summer school program. 
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The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of 
comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school 
district of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts did not meet this goal by 53.2% and 56% respectively. During the 2020 
21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which had significantly limited 
the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure student accountability for 
learning. To compensate for many of the challenges brought about by virtual instruction, the school 
offered academic support opportunities in mathematics, English Language Arts, science, and social 
studies after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter and Spring recess. Also, a majority of the 2017 
cohort opted in to in person instruction beginning in February 2021. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort not 
Proficient in 
8th Grade 

(a) 

Number 
Exempted 

with No Valid 
Score 
(b) 

Number 
Scoring at 

Least Level 4 
(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 3 2 11.8% 
2017 2020 21 44 0 4 9.0% 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 75% of students who were not proficient in 8th grade scoring at 
or above a performance level 3 by 25%. 2017 cohort matched the 2016 cohort. The school 
provided additional opportunities for targeted academic support in mathematics after school, on 
Saturdays, during mid Winter recess, Spring recess, and during our six week summer school 
program. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 3 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 3 17 100.0% 
2017 2020 21 44 0 44 100.0% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 3 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 
The Academy has achieved two of the four applicable measures of this Accountability Plan goal. 
The school did not achieve the following goals: 1) 65% of students achieving at least a performance 
level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam and, 2) At least 50% of the 2017 cohort who were not 
proficient in 8th grade did not meet or exceed Common Core expectations. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

3 Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam 
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Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students 
completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state 
Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Science 

All students at the school will demonstrate competency in the understanding and application of 
scientific reasoning. 
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BACKGROUND 

The Academy recognizes that curriculum, instruction and assessment must be dynamic through this 
period. In evaluating the strengths of our current curriculum and the needs of our varying student 
populations, we recognize that modifications would be required. Some modifications are driven by 
safety considerations, whereas others are predicated on instructional value. 

The school will continue to use most of the curriculum outlined in the charter. The school will 
continue to use most of the curriculum outlined in the charter. Teachers at every grade level plan 
and implement learning experiences aligned with the State Standards. Teachers utilize the McGraw 
Hill is utilized in the elementary grades, and other standards based supplementary materials from 
the EngageNY modules. In the high school, the Pearson curriculum is being utilized for Living 
Environment instruction, and Perfection Learning for Earth Science. 

In the elementary grades, for those students participating 100% virtually, students will also be 
provided access to virtual labs from Gizmos. In the high school students participating virtually will 
use the Smart Science Education Inc. curriculum virtually for labs. Moreover, the school will use 
electronic curriculum materials from the McGraw Hill, Inspire Science, outlined in the charter. 

METHOD 

In the elementary grades a departmental teacher develop exams were administered to students. 
This was based mostly on theoretical concepts with no lab performance. Teachers then 
administered standards based tests to evaluate student performance. Quarterly grades were 
calculated based on these assessments. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Awaiting the results of the New York State Grade 4 & Grade 8 Intermediate Level Science Test 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated only in virtual instruction which has 
many limitations in providing teacher supervision and student accountability for learning. 

SUMMARY OF THE ELEMENTARY SCIENCE GOAL 
Students and staff made up a good effort for instructional learning but there were limitations on 
teaching science virtually and they were missing science labs impacted student achievement. 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in science. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
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Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school 
year, the school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these 
two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics. The school administered exam(s). It 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students must score at least 65 to pass. This measure 
requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by 
their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken a particular Regents science exam 
multiple times or have taken multiple science exams. Students have until the summer of their 
fourth year to pass a science exam. 

cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

Due to the 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts exceeded the target goal of 75 percent of students scoring 
at least 65 on the New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in 
the cohort by 9.2% and 9% respectively. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort4 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 0 80 84.2% 
2017 2020 21 94 0 79 84.0% 

4 Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam 
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Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History 
exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

METHOD 

This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the Global History exam by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exam multiple 
times, and had until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance 
on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

RESULTS 

86.3% and 66.7% for the 2016 and 2017 cohorts passed the Global History Regents respectively. 

Global History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 0 82 
2017 2020 21 94 91 2 

(c)/(a b) 

N/A 
86.3% 
66.7% 

EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts exceeded the target goal of 75 percent of students scoring 
at least 65 on the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort by 1.3% and 14.2% respectively. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead was in Good Standing during all 3 years. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2018 19 Good Standing 
2019 20 Good Standing 
2020 21 Good Standing 
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Wayne Haughton, Executive Directory prepared this 2020 21 Accountability Progress Report on 
behalf of the board of trustees: 

Board Position 
Name Office (e.g. chair, treasurer, Committees (e.g. finance, 

secretary) executive) 
Robert Stewart Chair Executive, Academics, 

Operations & Technology 
Dawn West Vice Chair Committees 

Stephen Rowley Treasurer Finance, Operations & 
Technology 

Peter J. Goodman Trustee People & Legal 
Roderick Roberts Trustee Operations & Technology, 

People & Legal 
Claudette Harrison Trustee Academics, People & Legal 
Beth McKenzie Trustee Executive, People & Legal, 

Operations & Technology 
Carol Beckles Secretary Executive, People & Legal 
Maria Graham Trustee Academic & Finance 
Dale James Treasurer Executive, Finance 

Dorothy Burton Trustee Academics 
Rodger Ball Trustee Academics 

Mr. Haughton has served as the Executive Director since 2012. 
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SCHOOL OVERVIEW 

K-2. Located in Hempstead, NY, a school district with approximately 81% free and reduced-price 
lunch students, The Academy continues to successfully serve a student population with a large 
percentage of English language learners, special education students, and economically disadvantaged 
students. To further the mission, The Academy expanded to serve 1,719 students in grades K-12 in the 
2019-2020 school year. 

The Academy improves student academic achievement by focusing on the development of three 

development, and fostering a lifelong behavior of giving back to the community. The Academy strives 
to have its children learn, lead, and serve. 

The Academy : 

To create world class scholars who will learn today, lead tomorrow and serve in the future. Key Design 
Elements 

The nine key design elements educational plan are intent to provide our students across various ability 
levels to achieve success, understanding their strengths and unique abilities, and develop the self-
discipline and confidence required to excel in any environment. 

program, and support for students in a three-hour Saturday school program and during the 
winter/spring/summer breaks. Moreover, select high school students attend a six-week program geared 
towards preparation for Regents exam. 

Elementary School class has 25 to 27 students two 
adults in every classroom. This allows for greater focus on student support including small groups and 
individualized instruction. 

Standard Based Curriculum- Core content subjects, New York State Next Generation Learning 
Standards. 

eachers. This includes a two-week pre-service 
teacher induction and training. Full time Math and English Language coaches in grades K-8, and 
content specific departmental chairs in the high school. 

8 receive ongoing instruction and participate in 
discussions related to key core values geared towards character development using selected 
curriculum. 

include Renascence STAR Read & Math (K-8), Fountas and Pinnell (K-5), NWEA MAP (High 
School), Las Link (ESL), and other Interim Assessments aligned to New York State assessments (3-
8), and Regents Exams, Practice SAT & ACT. These assessments allow for measuring student progress 
and inform the instructional program. 

Remediation & Enrichment- There is ongoing support for students during the school day and after 
school. There is also accelerated course work for middle school and high school. 
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are required to complete service learning and 
volunteering projects. 

Technology -S.T.E.M- Schoolwide use of integrating technology as a learning tool and specific STEM 
instruction in grades K-12. 

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 
In the table below, provide the BEDS Day enrollment for each school year. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total 

2016 17 107 108 107 108 77 81 80 83 77 117 945 

2017 18 100 109 110 104 109 78 82 79 87 117 109 1084 

2018 19 222 107 103 108 108 108 87 82 84 144 104 104 1361 

2019 20 148 230 118 119 119 121 125 122 114 169 142 95 94 1717 

2020 21 152 152 230 125 125 123 122 122 125 108 179 123 92 1782 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade. For example, the 2017 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2017 18 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the annual enrollment determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
2020 21 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason. (See New York State Education SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 
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Fourth Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the 

Fourth Year 

Number 
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 
June 30th 

2018 19 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A N/A 
2019 20 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
2020 21 2017 18 2017 94 0 94 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade. Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma granting 
program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Total 
Graduation 
Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

N/A 
2019 20 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
2020 21 2017 18 2017 94 0 94 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of the 

Fourth Year 
(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 
Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

2018 19 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fifth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the 
Fifth Year 

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 
Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 
Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2018 19 2014 15 2014 N/A N/A N/A 
2019 20 2015 16 2015 N/A N/A N/A 
2020 21 2016 17 2016 95 0 95 
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GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

All students at the school will graduate from high school 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation. The measure 
requires that, based on the promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

ve the goal of 75% promotion, with the 2019 
cohort 4.5 percentage points below the 75% goal. The 2020 cohort did exceed the goal of 75% by 

March 2020 may be attributable to the school 
missing its promotion goal. 

Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts 
Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2020 21 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number in 
Cohort during 

2020 21 

Percent 
promoted 

2019 173 70.1% 
2020 106 76.4% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which has 
significantly limited the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure 
student accountability for learning. The percent promoted for the 2019 cohort saw a slight increase 
(0.1 %) in the 2020 2021 school year from 2019 2020 school year. Additionally, the 2020 cohort 
percent promoted after the first year exceeded the same of the 2019 cohort by 2.2%. Prior to the 
transition to remote learning, the school had met its promotion goal every year. We expect that 
the increasing trend in percent promoted will continue with the incoming cohorts as we return to 
in person learning. 
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Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage. The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort. 

As a result of the Board of guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 2020 21, for the most recent second year 
cohort schools should report the percentage of students who either passed or were exempted 
from at least three exams. In August of 2021, the 2019 cohort will have completed its second 
year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy achieved its goal of 75% of students achieving proficiency on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation. The 2017, 2018, and 2019 cohorts 
exceeded this goal by 6, 10.9, and 14 percentage points, respectively. 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Passing at 
Least Three 

Regents (including 
exemptions) 

2017 2018 19 100 81.0% 
2018 2019 20 142 85.9% 
2019 2020 21 173 90.1% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The Academy achieved its goal of 75% of students achieving proficiency on at least three different New 
York State Regents exams required for graduation. The 2017 cohort exceed this goal by 6%. The 2018 
cohort exceeded this goal by 10.9% and the 2019 cohort exceeded this goal by 14%. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts: those who entered the 9th 

grade as members of the 2017 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2016 cohort and graduated five years later. These data reflect August graduation 
rates. At a minimum, these students have passed or been exempted from five Regents exams 
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required for high school graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or 
met the requirements for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.1 

The graduation requirements appear in this document above the graduation goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead has exceeded its four year graduation goal for its first 
two graduating classes. The 2016 cohort exceeded the goal by 18.6% and the 2017 cohort exceeded 
the goal by 17.6%. By the end of its fifth year 100% of the 2016 cohort had graduated. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 93.6% 
2017 2020 21 94 92.6% 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 
Cohort 

Designation 
School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2014 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2015 2019 20 N/A N/A 

2016 2020 21 95 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which had 
significantly limited the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure 
student accountability for learning. To compensate for many of the challenges brought about by virtual 
instruction, the school offered academic support opportunities in mathematics, English Language Arts, 
science, and social studies after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter and Spring recess. Also, a 
majority of the 2017 cohort opted in to in person instruction beginning in February 2021. 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 

of comparison. Given that district results for the current year are generally not available at this 

1 The guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple pathways/. 
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time, for purposes of this report schools should include the 2019 20 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the 2020 21 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead met this goal based upon available data for the 2016 
cohort where it exceeded the Hempstead School District by 15.3%. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year 
Charter School Hempstead 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 536 62.5% 
2016 2019 20 95 93.6% 479 78.3% 
2017 2020 21 94 92.6% N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Based on the available data and the relatively consistent percent graduating in the 2017 cohort in 
comparison with the 2016 cohort, we anticipate that the 2017 cohort will exceed that of the Hempstead 
School District. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students. Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment. For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple 
pathways/. The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates bellow. 

As a result of the Board of guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 2020 21, students planning to take a 
pathway examination during those cancelled dates would be exempted from the requirement. 
For purposes of this measure, only report results for students with valid scores for any pathway 
exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

graduation pathway exceeded the goal of a 75 
percent graduation rate. 
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Percentage of the 2017 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type 

Exam 

Number of 
Graduation Cohort 
Members Tested 

(a) 

Number Passing or 
Achieving Regents 

Equivalency 

(b) 

Percentage Passing 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

Additional Social Studies 94 89 94.7% 
Regents 

Additional Math or Science 94 92 97.9% 
Regents 

Overall 94 94 100% 

Pathway Exam Passing Rate 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort Designation School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Passing a Pathway 
Exam 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 96.8% 
2017 2020 21 94 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 
The 2017 cohort achieved all, but one of the measures of this Accountability Plan goal. 
75% of the scholars in first and second year did not earn at least 5. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high 
school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 
needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

Not Met 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the 
completion of their second year in the cohort. 

Met 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

Met 
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Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 

Absolute 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment Met 

required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

The teachers work with instructional leadership to align course goals with student achievement 
data collected during previous administration of Regents examinations. Students requiring 
academic supports, based on Regents examination data, qualify and receive academic intervention 
services. Additional learning time and academic intervention services is provided in school, after 
school, on Saturdays, and during the Summer months. 

The school has also departmentalized instruction and made provisions for instructional coaching to 
include content leads and two Assistant Principals. Assistant Principals have been given specific 
content areas of instructional oversight and work with content leads to support student 
achievement through instructional practice. 

To ensure on time graduation for scholars, the school provides curriculum and support for students 
to complete Regents examination requirements by the conclusion of their 11th grade year. For 
students requiring additional assistance in meeting the graduation requirements on time, the 
school provides additional learning time and academic intervention services in school, after school, 
on Saturdays, and through credit recovery programming. 

Further, the counselors monitor student progress toward graduation regularly. They work 
with school principal, director of secondary education, assistant principals, students and families to 
identify the supports needed to assist students in graduating on time. 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

All students will be prepared to attend college. 

Scholars at The Academy Charter High School are supported throughout the entirety of the college 
application process. The school year starts with college counselor and family meetings for each 
student. Next, students are given expectations for what to expect through the school year. This 
includes, gauging initial interests, creating a list of colleges, determining eligibility for financial aid 
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and opportunity programs, and setting the scope of support the college counselor will provide. 
Students then meet with the college counselor for the duration of the year in small groups. During 
the student/counselor meetings, students are encouraged to build balanced college lists, complete 
their personal statement, and apply to CUNY, SUNY, and private/public out of state schools. 
Families are welcomed to meet with the college counselor to obtain assistance with completing 
financial aid forms such as the FAFSA, TAP, and CSS Profile, as well as any additional opportunity 
program and scholarship applications students may need to complete. The school will continue to 
support our families throughout the decision making and college commitment process by hosting 
financial aid review workshops and individualized sessions to support families in making informed 
decisions about the future college matriculation. In our first year, close working relationships 
with were established between The Academy and colleges such as Nassau Community College, 
SUNY Stony Brook University, SUNY Brockport, SUNY University at Albany and the University of 
Rochester.. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

Passing an Advanced Placement exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate exam; 

Passing a College Level Examination Program exam; 

Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; 

Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation; or, 

A different school created indicator approved by the Institute. 

METHOD 

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework. The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not. For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option. The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage. Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant indicators, and the overall percentage achieving any indicator. 

For the 2020 2021 academic year, the Academy continued a partnership with Molloy College to 
offer college credit for courses provided to high school scholars on our campus. Courses were 
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taught by instructors hired by the Academy and vetted and approved by Molloy College faculty. 
Participating scholars received 3 [or 4] credits (from Molloy College) for completion of the college 
course with a grade of C or higher. Scholars had the opportunity to participate in the following 
courses: 

ENG 1100 College Composition (3 cr.): College Composition seeks to initiate a dialogue 
among students that leads them to hone skill development by moving beyond their own 
"personal" position: the readings and classroom discussions give the sense that they are 
entering an ongoing conversation of consequence. Students are therefore required to 
integrate the thoughts and words of other writers of the class texts, online databases, 
other print and media sources and oral exchange into their own essays using the 
appropriate citing mechanism. Both in relation to their own experience and to a text or 
set of texts, student writers will learn how to articulate and develop a sophisticated 
argument within a specific rhetorical situation. 

POL 1010 American National Government (3 cr.): This course provides students with an 
overview of the American system of government which examines the impact of public 
opinions, group interests, and organizations on the institutions of American government. 
Particular attention is focused on issues which relate to the politics of public policy and 
the decision making process. The nature of American democracy is examined and critically 
analyzed. 

Drawing (3 cr.): Drawing is an introductory studio drawing course with 
emphasis on learning to see and developing basic drawing skills using various media by 
employing fundamental design and composition concepts. In addition to technical skills, 
an exploration of creative thinking, problem solving, and critical analysis will be studied. 
During the semester, students will explore different drawing techniques and media. 
Students will be encouraged to develop an expression of individual style. This is a hands 
on art class in which you will be exposed to the basic principles of drawing. We will work 
from observation in order to translate three dimensional objects and space onto a two 
dimensional surface. Drawing is a way of seeing that should be developed in an 
increasingly personal way as the student works through the semester. 

ART 1020 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2017 cohort did not achieve its goal of having 75 percent of graduating students from the 
2017 cohort demonstrating preparedness for college 
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Percentage of the 2017 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator 

Indicator 

Number of 
Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

Number who Achieved 
Indicator 

Passing AP Exam with 3 37 19 51.4% 
or Higher 

Passing College Level 40 31 77.5% 
Course 

Achieving the college and 76 18 23.7% 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT 

Earning a Regents 87 51 58.6% 
diploma with advanced 

designation 

Overall 87 58 66.7 

Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As shown in the table below. The 2017 performance on this goal was 5 percent better than 
the 2016 cohort. 

Cohort Number of Graduates Number who Achieved Percentage of Graduates 
who Attempted the Indicator who Achieved Indicator 

2016 

Indicator 

94 58 61.7% 

2017 87 58 66.7% 

To achieve this goal in the future, the school has provided and will increase opportunities for 
students to participate in Advanced Placement (AP) and college level courses. The school currently 
offer the following AP Courses: Computer Science Principles, English Literature and Composition, 
English Language and Composition, Psychology, World History, and Calculus AB. The Academy also 
offers the following college courses for credit through partnership with Molloy College: Drawing, 
American National Government, and College Composition. To support students in achieving the 
college readiness benchmark on the SATs, we offered SAT prep (in school). We also implemented a 
peer mentoring and tutoring program after school to provided additional one on one academic 
support. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index for the Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress set forth in the ESSA accountability system. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 
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Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of 
Total Cohort. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college. Schools track and report the percentage of fourth 
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four year college program in the school 
year following graduation. Schools should update and confirm data for Cohorts prior to 2020 21 
and provide preliminary matriculation data for 2017 Cohort. It may be necessary for schools to 
provide updated data to the Institute when National Student Clearinghouse or other data sources 
become available later in the school year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 75% of graduating students matriculating into a college or 
university in the year after graduation by five percentage points for the 2016 Cohort and by 25 
points for the 2017 Cohort. 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Cohort Graduation Year 

Number of 
Graduates 

(a) 

Number Enrolled 
in 2 or 4 year 
Program in 

Following Year 
(b) 

Matriculation 
Rate 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

2015 2018 19 N/A N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 76 80.0% 
2017 2020 21 87 87 100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The 2017 matriculation rate for the 2017 cohort exceeded that of the 2016 cohort by 20%. We will 
continue to implement a robust college preparation, beginning in the first year of each cohort 
program targeted to support scholars as they matriculate through high school. To support these 
endeavors, we have added an Early College Counselor whose primary focus will be implementing 
curriculum and programs for scholars in their first, second, and third year. A College and Career 
Placement officer will work with scholars in the fourth year of their cohort. 
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SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 
Present a narrative providing an overview of which measures the school achieved, as well as an 
overall discussion of its attainment of this Accountability Plan goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible 
indicators of college readiness. 

Not Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that state MIP set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that of the Total Cohort. 

N/A 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. Met 

[Write in optional measure here] 

ACTION PLAN 

To achieve this goal, the school will increase opportunities for students to participate in Advanced 
Placement (AP) courses in addition to the opportunities provided for college coursework. We will 
offer AP Statistics and AP Spanish Language and Culture in addition to coursework offered during 
the 2020 2021 academic year. To support students in achieving the college readiness benchmark on 
the SATs, we will continue to offer SAT prep. We also will continue to offer additional one to one 
tutoring (including peer tutoring) for students in preparation for Regents examinations. 

GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: English Language Arts 
All students at the school will be proficient in the reading and writing of the English language: 

BACKGROUND 

The Academy Charter School recognizes that curriculum, instruction and assessment must be 
dynamic through this period. In evaluating the strengths of our current curriculum and the needs of 
our varying student populations, we recognize that modifications would be required. Some 
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The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in English 
Language Arts. Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, 
extended school week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school 
program. Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The State 
Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percentage of the Accountability 
Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students achieving at least Level 4 among 
the students who sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter High School met this goal for 2017 cohort with 75% of the cohort 
achieving this indicator. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort2 

Cohort 
Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid Score 
(b) 

Number 
Scoring at 

Least Level 4 
(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 NA N/A N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 2 45 48.4% 
2017 2020 21 94 74 15 75% 

2 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

During the third year of the 2017 cohort, 21% of the cohort sat for the January 2020 Regents 
administration of the English common core exam. The remaining 79% of the cohort was scheduled 
to take the English common core regents examination during the June 2020 Regents administration 
period, which was suspended by the NYSED due to the COVID 19 pandemic. Of the 21% of scholars 
in the 2017 cohort who sat for the Regents examination, only 3 scholars were not proficient in the 
8th grade and one of the three scholars (33.3%) achieved at least a level 4 which fell short of the 
target by 42%. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 0 5 26.3% 
2017 2020 21 36 33 1 33.3% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 4 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 
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Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In their fourth year, 100% of the students in the 2017 cohort who sat for the Regents English 
common core exam and were not proficient in 8th grade achieved at least a level 3. This exceeded 
the goal by 25%. Due to the cancellation of multiple Regents examination administrations, 3 of the 
36 scholars in the 2017 cohort who were not proficient in 8th grade, sat for the Regents English 
common core exam. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 0 14 70% 
2017 2020 21 36 33 3 100% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 3 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The Regents English common core exam for the 2020 2021 academic year was solely offered in 
June 2020 by the NYSED. Due to the COVID 19 pandemic, participation in the Regents examination 
administration periods for the June 2021 period. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
The Academy has achieved all but one measure of this Accountability Plan goal. The school did not 
achieve the goal that At least 50% of the 2017 cohort who were not proficient in 8th grade did not 
meet or exceed Common Core expectations. 
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Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in English 
Language Arts. Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, 
extended school week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school 
program. Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 
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The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in Mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. 
The State Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as 
scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents 
Common Core mathematics exams. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability 
Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for any mathematics exam 
but were scheduled to sit for one during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam requirement as well as the percentage of students achieving at least 
Level 4 among the students who sat for any exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 65% of students scoring at or above a performance level 4 by 
9.1%. 2017 cohort exceeded the 2016 cohort by 44%. The school provided additional opportunities 
for targeted academic support in mathematics after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter 
recess, Spring recess, and during our six week summer school program. 
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The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of 
comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school 
district of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts did not meet this goal by 53.2% and 56% respectively. During the 2020 
21 school year, many students participated solely in virtual instruction, which had significantly limited 
the ability to provide supervision throughout instruction and assure student accountability for 
learning. To compensate for many of the challenges brought about by virtual instruction, the school 
offered academic support opportunities in mathematics, English Language Arts, science, and social 
studies after school, on Saturdays, during mid Winter and Spring recess. Also, a majority of the 2017 
cohort opted in to in person instruction beginning in February 2021. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort not 
Proficient in 
8th Grade 

(a) 

Number 
Exempted 

with No Valid 
Score 
(b) 

Number 
Scoring at 

Least Level 4 
(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 3 2 11.8% 
2017 2020 21 44 0 4 9.0% 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy exceeded its goal of 75% of students who were not proficient in 8th grade scoring at 
or above a performance level 3 by 25%. 2017 cohort matched the 2016 cohort. The school 
provided additional opportunities for targeted academic support in mathematics after school, on 
Saturdays, during mid Winter recess, Spring recess, and during our six week summer school 
program. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 
Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 3 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 20 3 17 100.0% 
2017 2020 21 44 0 44 100.0% 

Number in Number Number Fourth Cohort not Exempted Cohort Scoring at Year Proficient in with No Valid Designation Least Level 3 8th Grade Score (c) (a) (b) 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 
The Academy has achieved two of the four applicable measures of this Accountability Plan goal. 
The school did not achieve the following goals: 1) 65% of students achieving at least a performance 
level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam and, 2) At least 50% of the 2017 cohort who were not 
proficient in 8th grade did not meet or exceed Common Core expectations. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

3 Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam 
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Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students 
completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state 
Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did Not Achieve 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in mathematics. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school year, the 
school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these two subgroups. 

GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Science 

All students at the school will demonstrate competency in the understanding and application of 
scientific reasoning. 
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BACKGROUND 

The Academy recognizes that curriculum, instruction and assessment must be dynamic through this 
period. In evaluating the strengths of our current curriculum and the needs of our varying student 
populations, we recognize that modifications would be required. Some modifications are driven by 
safety considerations, whereas others are predicated on instructional value. 

The school will continue to use most of the curriculum outlined in the charter. The school will 
continue to use most of the curriculum outlined in the charter. Teachers at every grade level plan 
and implement learning experiences aligned with the State Standards. Teachers utilize the McGraw 
Hill is utilized in the elementary grades, and other standards based supplementary materials from 
the EngageNY modules. In the high school, the Pearson curriculum is being utilized for Living 
Environment instruction, and Perfection Learning for Earth Science. 

In the elementary grades, for those students participating 100% virtually, students will also be 
provided access to virtual labs from Gizmos. In the high school students participating virtually will 
use the Smart Science Education Inc. curriculum virtually for labs. Moreover, the school will use 
electronic curriculum materials from the McGraw Hill, Inspire Science, outlined in the charter. 

METHOD 

In the elementary grades a departmental teacher develop exams were administered to students. 
This was based mostly on theoretical concepts with no lab performance. Teachers then 
administered standards based tests to evaluate student performance. Quarterly grades were 
calculated based on these assessments. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Awaiting the results of the New York State Grade 4 & Grade 8 Intermediate Level Science Test 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 

During the 2020 21 school year, many students participated only in virtual instruction which has 
many limitations in providing teacher supervision and student accountability for learning. 

SUMMARY OF THE ELEMENTARY SCIENCE GOAL 
Students and staff made up a good effort for instructional learning but there were limitations on 
teaching science virtually and they were missing science labs impacted student achievement. 

ACTION PLAN 

The school will continue to support struggling students by providing academic services in science. 
Students will receive support services during the school day, extended school day, extended school 
week such as Saturday tutoring, extended school year including 6 week summer school program. 
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Moreover, teachers will be provided with ongoing professional development to increase their 
knowledge based related to standards based curriculum and pedagogy. For the 2021 22 school 
year, the school will hire additional special education and ESL staff to target instruction for these 
two subgroups. 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics. The school administered exam(s). It 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students must score at least 65 to pass. This measure 
requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by 
their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken a particular Regents science exam 
multiple times or have taken multiple science exams. Students have until the summer of their 
fourth year to pass a science exam. 

cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

Due to the 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts exceeded the target goal of 75 percent of students scoring 
at least 65 on the New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in 
the cohort by 9.2% and 9% respectively. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort4 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

(c)/(a b) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 0 80 84.2% 
2017 2020 21 94 0 79 84.0% 

4 Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam 
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Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History 
exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020 21. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

METHOD 

This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the Global History exam by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exam multiple 
times, and had until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance 
on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing. 

Due to the cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019 20 and 
2020 21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement. As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

RESULTS 

86.3% and 66.7% for the 2016 and 2017 cohorts passed the Global History Regents respectively. 

Global History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

2015 2018 19 N/A 0 N/A 
2016 2019 20 95 0 82 
2017 2020 21 94 91 2 

(c)/(a b) 

N/A 
86.3% 
66.7% 

EVALUATION 

The 2016 and 2017 cohorts exceeded the target goal of 75 percent of students scoring 
at least 65 on the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort by 1.3% and 14.2% respectively. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The Academy Charter School Hempstead was in Good Standing during all 3 years. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2018 19 Good Standing 
2019 20 Good Standing 
2020 21 Good Standing 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 
Other 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Deferred Rent 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Ristrictions 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS 

2020-21 2019-20 

$ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
1,248,677 1,336,393 

656,675 635,684 
48,110 2,467 

- -
11,775,939 9,283,991 

106,898,072 74,368,334 

57,408,977 12,323,283 

176,082,988 95,975,608 

$ 6,179,939 $ 3,922,601 
3,434,749 2,407,411 

60,355 74,681 
1,495,000 1,075,000 

- 2,500,000 
- -

11,170,043 9,979,693 

- -
156,903,343 81,373,693 

156,903,343 81,373,693 

168,073,386 91,353,386 

8,009,602 4,622,222 
- -

8,009,602 4,622,222 

176,082,988 95,975,608 

CK - Should be zero - -



   
 

   
     

    
  

                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                          

  
                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                             

 
                                                                                        
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      

                                                                                               
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                             

                                                                                                    

   

                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                               

     

  

     

   

    

  
    

   

2019-20 
Without Donor 

Restrictions 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total Total 

Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

Resident Student Enrollment 
Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts 
State and local 
Federal - Title and IDEA 
Federal - Other 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

$ 34,824,352 
-

-
7,194,948 

-
-
-
-

42,019,300 

$ -
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

$ 34,824,352 
-

-
7,194,948 

-
-
-
-

42,019,300 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

$ 29,573,453 
1,620,686 
1,703,510 

32,897,649 
7,527,861 

-
40,425,510 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 29,573,453 
1,620,686 
1,703,510 

32,897,649 
7,527,861 

-
40,425,510 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,593,790 - 1,593,790 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 

Foundations 
Individuals 
Corporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 
Net assets released from restriction 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 2,086,935 
-
-
-

6,782 
-
-

2,093,717 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,086,935 
-
-
-

6,782 
-
-

2,093,717 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,687,507 - 3,687,507 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

3,600,299 
-

-
-

3,600,299 
-

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 7,287,806 $ - $ 7,287,806 

$ 33,647,136 
-

-
1,869,593 

-
-
-
-

35,516,729 

$ 27,395,509 
1,294,357 
1,633,109 

30,322,975 
5,665,276 

-
35,988,251 

(471,522) 

$ 

$ 

487,092 
-
-
-

118,737 
-
-

605,829 

134,307 

3,465,992 
-

3,600,299 



    
                                                                      

    
 

     
                                                                

                                                                       
    

                                                   
                                                                            

                                                                  
                                                                        
                                                                       

                                                                                                       
                                                                                  

                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                            
                                                                                                    
                                                              

    
                                                              

                                                                                                    
                                                        

    
                                                                     

                                                                 
                                                            

                                                          
                                                                  

                                                          

   

     

     

    

       

       

     

   
ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Cash Flows 
as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 2019-20 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 3,387,380 
Revenues from School Districts -
Accounts Receivable 87,716 
Due from School Districts -
Depreciation 4,725,570 
Grants Receivable (20,991) 
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses (45,643) 
Accounts Payable 2,657,115 
Accrued Expenses 1,027,338 
Accrued Liabilities (399,777) 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources (4,849,550) 
Deferred Revenue (14,326) 
Interest payments -
Other 120,000 
Other -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 6,674,832 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment (35,854,665) 
Other -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (35,854,665) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt (3,225,000) 
Other 80,123,557 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 76,898,557 $ 4,776,268 

$ 841,312 
-

269,389 
-

2,760,022 
(111,108) 

-
-

14,951 
(2,113,992) 

557,940 
(26,980) 

-
-

(65,239) 
-

(9,745) 
-

$ 2,116,550 

(9,327,960) 
-

$ (9,327,960) 

(910,000) 
5,686,268 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 47,718,724 $ (2,435,142) 
Cash at beginning of year 19,440,640 21,875,782 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 
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STAFF_NAME 
ALLEN, KRICEL 
ANTHONY, MICHELLE 
ANTONIO, CAROLINE 

ARRIAGA, LINA 
ASPERAS-VALAYER, LAURIE 

AYENI, OLATOKUNBO 
AYINDE, SALIMAT 

BANKS, TYKEEMA 
ATKINSON, CHRISTINA 
ATOKI, TAYO 
BARRACKS, FELICIA 
BENNETT, ALFRED 
BERMEO, BRIDGET 
BANEGAS ORDONEZ, ANGELICA 
BANSCHBACK, MICHAEL 
BEBEE, JOY 
BEHL, ASHWANI 
BEST, CARLA 
BEST, TAMARA 

BIRNEY, RYAN 

BLACKWOOD-SLATER, EDITH 
BOYD, DESIRAY 

BRADLEY, ALEXIS 
BRENT, ROBERT 
BRIDGES, HASHANA 
BROOKS, RANDY 
BROWN, KATELYNN 

CAMPBELL, JUDITH 

CANTOS, TALISA 

TEACH ID Role In School 
2196889 TEACHER 
2087230 SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL COUNSELOR 

BUSINESS OFFICIAL 

3560223 TEACHER 
1106511 TEACHER 

3956565 TEACHER 
3554092 TEACHER 

3861366 TEACHER 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
NETWORK & IT 

3633488 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
4025512 TEACHER 
3557064 TEACHER 

FOOD SERVICES 
FOOD SERVICES 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 

1873847 DIRECTOR OF MIDDLE-LEVEL EDUCATION 
3723434 MIDDLE SCHOOL COUNSELOR 

4078899 TEACHER 

1787215 TEACHER 
3563865 TEACHER 

2249517 TEACHER 
3526831 TEACHER 
1854005 TEACHER 
4017935 TEACHER 
3778269 TEACHER 

1789749 TEACHER 

3916880 TEACHER 



 

 
 
 
  
  
  
  

  
 

  
  
  

  
  

    
 

 
 

 
 
 

     
  

  
 

 

 

 

 
  
    

 
 

CAROUSSO, MARY 3693127 TEACHER 

CHEATHAM, SEAN 3835512 TEACHER 
CLARKE, WAYNE 4037135 TEACHER 
COHEN, JESSICA 2367648 TEACHER 
BROWN, ANDREA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BROWN, SAMANTHA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BROWN, RASHELLE BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BROWN, CAPRICIA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
BRUNY, RANDOLPH GUIDANCE COUNSELOR 
BYER, DARYL CUSTODIAN 
CAMERON, LILLIETH FOOD SERVICES 
CASTRO, EVA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
CHARLES, SHAROKI FOOD SERVICES 
CHIPPY, RACQUEL BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
CHRISTIAN, ANTONIA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
COLLINS LEWIS, REVA 3524657 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL COUNSELOR 
COMRIE, SHYANN 2197814 TEACHER 
CONNORS, PEGI 1899463 TEACHER 
COSTA, NICHOLAS 3671648 TEACHER 
CRUZ, EDWARD 3860738 TEACHER 
COOPER, MICHAEL CUSTODIAN 
CROOKS, DARYLL SECURITY 
CUMMINGS, ROBERTA 1723189 ASST PRINCIPAL SENIOR HIGH SCH 
DAILEY, JAMES CUSTODIAN SUPERVISOR 
DANGLADE, TAMARA 3934367 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
DAS, PRIA 1894319 TEACHER 
DASCHER, KATHERINE 4065941 TEACHER 

DAVIS, BRIGETTE 4029579 TEACHER 

DAVIS, SHERENE 4033691 TEACHER 

DAWKINS, JOYCE 2189454 TEACHER 
DARRELL, ELAINE TEACHING ASSISTANT 
DAWSON, VETA 3890455 ASST PRINCIPAL MIDDLE SCHOOL 

DEFRANCO, MIA 3706813 TEACHER 
DESANTO, KRISTEN 2420982 TEACHER 



 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
  

   
 

   
 

 
  

 
  
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
  

  
    

 
 

 
   

 
    

DIDOMENICO, JOSEPH 1737380 TEACHER 
DIENZO, REBECCA 2421740 TEACHER 
DISTANISLAO, CHRISTINA 2364661 TEACHER 
DOBSON, MATHEW 3552343 TEACHER 
DOMINGUEZ, DANIA 3569534 TEACHER 
DONNELLY, LOIS 1747904 TEACHER 
DIAZ, DAWN TEACHING ASSISTANT 
DOMAGE, JOHN CUSTODIAN 
DOUGLAS, DONNA 2302257 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
ELLIS, LEROY 1586721 DEAN OF STUDENTS 
ELYSEE, BOTTICELLI 3846382 TEACHER 
ESCOBAR, RUTH 3548442 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL COUNSELOR 
FIORE, STEPHANIE 1859442 TEACHER 

FIORI, JENELLE 3697153 TEACHER 
FANFAN, RAUL FOOD SERVICES 
FERRUFINO, LILLIAN CUSTODIAN 
FINLAY, NAKIA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
FORBES, EARL CUSTODIAN 
GALLIMORE, NIGEL CUSTODIAN 
GALLIMORE, BEVERLEY 4025999 PRINCIPAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

GAYLE, ZONYA 3968495 TEACHER 
GEORGE, DEBBIE 2261557 TEACHER 

GIBBS-WILLIAMS, LAURA 1869503 TEACHER 
GARCIA, ROMELIA CUSTODIAN 
GENESSIE, PHILLIP CUSTODIAN 
GOLDEN BROWN, CINDY FOOD SERVICES 
GOLDSON, BARRINGTON CEO 
GONZALEZ, JENETTA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
GOODEN, KRYSTAL TEACHING ASSISTANT 
GOODEN, JANINE 2221219 SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL COUNSELOR 

GORDON, ASTENETT 3967083 TEACHER 
GORDON, LATOYA 3763474 TEACHER 
GOULBOURNE, KARLA 3844898 TEACHER 
GRAHAM, HEATHER 1761310 PRINCIPAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
GRANT, SHARRAY 3669757 
GRENARDO, KEMARA 3756518 SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL COUNSELOR 



 

 

 
 

 
  
  
  

  
  

 
  

 
   

 

 
    
 

 

 
 

 
  

  
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

GRIFFIN, RONALD 

GUZMAN, ROSA 

HACKETT, GLENDON 
HANIF, ELIZABETH 
HANSON, BEVERLEY 
GRIZZLE, RACQUEL 
GRIZZLE, JANELLE 
GUNTER, NATHAN 
HAUGHTON, WAYNE 
HAYWARD, JAC-LYN 
HAZEL, DOREEN 
HENRY, DONOVAN 

HERNANDEZ, EDMYE 
HINES, DEZMARIE 
HIRD, DWANE 

HOGAN, ARMELL 
HOLLOWAY, TRAVIS 
ILDEFONSO, YANIRA 

JAMES, GORDON 

JEFFERSON, YOLANDE 
JACKSON, GEORGE 
JAMES, ENGLEBERT 
JAMES, KATHERINE 
JOHN, MANJU 
JOHNSON, JOHN 
JOHNSON, CARL 
JOHNSON, SHONETT 

JONES, BRIANNA 
JONES, BRIANNA 
JUDSON, TERRANCE 
KEAN, DANIEL 

2271119 TEACHER 

2015175 TEACHER 

3896241 TEACHER 
3508611 TEACHER 
1782000 TEACHER 

BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 

1757202 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
SECURITY 

4004228 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 

3649698 TEACHER 
3525270 DIRECTOR OF ESL 
4042829 TEACHER 

3824477 TEACHER 
2383652 PRINCIPAL SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 
3878084 COUNSELOR 

3815190 TEACHER 

2249192 TEACHER 
SECURITY 
CUSTODIAN 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
SECURITY 

3920328 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
3860458 TEACHER 

3699950 TEACHER 
3699950 TEACHER 
1389341 TEACHER 
3915338 TEACHER 



 
 

 

 
  

 
   

 
   

  
 

 
  

   
  

 
  
  

 
 
 

 
   

  
   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

KOCIUBINSKA, KLAUDIA 2280136 TEACHER 
KOZNESOFF, LEEANA 1642102 TEACHER 
LASCKO, KASSANDRA 2150847 TEACHER 

LATIF, NADINE 3965539 TEACHER 
KISSON, MURGENA FOOD SERVICES 
KOWLESSAR, GEDDES SECURITY 
LEVATINO, KATHARYN 4057785 LIBRARY MEDIA SPECIALIST 
LEWIS, KAREN 2332472 TEACHER 
LOPEZ VANEGAS, MARIA FOOD SERVICES 
LUCERO, YANET BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
MACKLIN, SHANESE 3927592 COUNSELOR 
MAGE, CHRISTINE 2344458 TEACHER 
MAHARAJ, AMY FOOD SERVICES 
MALALIS, MICHELLE COVID RESPONSE COORDINATOR 
MALCOLM, JUAN TEACHING ASSISTANT 
MANUEL, KYLE SECURITY 
MARAJ, VISHWANATH BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
MARAJ, KAYON 4077912 SOCIAL WORKER 

MARTINELLI, ERICA 1751294 TEACHER 
MARTINEZ, BREANA 3989373 TEACHER 
MARTINEZ, YOHAINA 3622822 TEACHER 
MARCELLUS, JEAN CUSTODIAN 
MARTIN, LA SONJA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
MARTINEZ, JEANETT TEACHING ASSISTANT 
MATTISON, DERMOTH 2286252 PRINCIPAL MIDDLE SCHOOL 
MCCRORIE, LYSA 1673442 TEACHER 

MCKENZIE, DENZEL 3867155 TEACHER 
MEEKINS, STEJHA 3520285 TEACHER 
MERZ, TERESA 3838452 TEACHER 

MILLWOOD, JADE 3928513 TEACHER 

MOBARHAN, REZA 1668507 TEACHER 

MONCRIEFFE, CLAUDETTE 4029604 TEACHER 

MORRIS, KIMBERLY 3948826 TEACHER 



 
 

 
 

  
  
 

  
  

   
 

 
  

  
 

 

 
  

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

 
  

MOTES, DAVOND 3528177 TEACHER 
MUNGAI, GEORGE 2190560 TEACHER 
MCDOUGALD, LETICIA SECURITY 
MCQUEEN, ANGELYN SECURITY 
MEDINA, PATRICIA FOOD SERVICES 
MEIJER, LUCINDA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
MINGO, ALEXANDER SECURITY 
MOREAU, ASHLEEN TEACHING ASSISTANT 
MORRIS, PAULA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
NEALE, TANEQUA 3544604 DEAN OF STUDENTS 
NEKOTA, SUSAN 1308338 TEACHER 

NELSON, JULANE 4036691 TEACHER 
NELSON-GILL, TRISHA 3561000 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
ONEIL, SANDREA 3875332 BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
PAPADIMATOS, ALEXA 3877885 TEACHER 
PARRINO, BRIANA 3556944 TEACHER 

PEDERSEN, NICOLE 1884751 TEACHER 
PARKES, TIANNA TEACHING ASSISTANT 
PASCUAL, JANCEY CUSTODIAN 
PAYTON, RASHAAD SECURITY 
PETERKIN, WAYNE 1221588 PRINCIPAL MIDDLE SCHOOL 

PHILLIPS, SHELLON 3802894 TEACHER 
POGNON, MADONNA 3559595 TEACHER 
RAMNATH, MARESSA 3873017 TEACHER 
RASCOE, VANESSA 1337253 TEACHER 
REEVES, DARLENE 1435656 TEACHER 

REYES, LISA 3789127 TEACHER 
ROBINSON, SHELLY-ANNE 3578427 TEACHER 
POWELL WARNER, CHANNETTE CUSTODIAN 
PRIOLEAU, TANYA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
RAMIREZ, NORMA BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
REID, LISET TEACHING ASSISTANT 
ROACHE, JANET BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
ROBINSON, RANDFORD FOOD SERVICES 
ROOPNARINE, LORI 3539196 DIRECTOR PUPIL SERVICES 

FORTE, TARA 2096614 TEACHER 
ROWE, JUSLYN TEACHING ASSISTANT 



   
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 
 
 
  

  
   

  

 
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

ROWE, DAVID 
SAGE, BILLY 
SANKAR, VARSHA 
SCANLAN, JOSEPH 

SCATURRO, CAROLINA 
SCHROLL, ANNIE 
SIERRA, MELLISA 

SMITH, ALICIA 

SMITH, CAROLYN 
SMITH, LAURA 
SMITH, NICOLE 
SAMUELS, KENNETH 
SANCHEZ, SEBASTIAN 
SANTOS, ANTONIA 
SCOTT, DENISE 
SHARPE, MARJORIE 
SILVA, ANNIE 
SIMPSON, TIMOKI 
SIXTO, MARIE 
SMALL, MARLON 
SMITH, LLOYD 
SOBHAI, DRUPATIE 
SORTO, KATIE 
SOUFFRANT, CHRIS 

SPELLEN, JODY MAY 

SPENCER, MARVELENE 
SPIVEY-HUNTER, KIM 
STANLEY, CORY 
STAPLETON, NICHOLAS 

STEWART, MARK 
SWIDER, JESSICA 

THOMAS, KARIM 
THOMAS, RACHEL 

4085449 DEAN OF STUDENTS 
3822182 TEACHER 
2156035 TEACHER 
3570061 TEACHER 

2261222 TEACHER 
2123462 TEACHER 
2371720 TEACHER 

3593272 TEACHER 

1889605 TEACHER 
1745024 TEACHER 
2203530 TEACHER 

CUSTODIAN 
FOOD SERVICES 
FOOD SERVICES 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
INSTRUCTIONAL COACH 
FOOD SERVICES 
SECURITY 
SECURITY 
SECURITY 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 

3686679 DEAN OF STUDENTS 

3928507 TEACHER 

4060734 TEACHER 
1828398 DIRECTOR/COORDINATOR SPEC EDUC 

TEACHING ASSISTANT 
1444461 SUPERINTENDENT 

3549221 TEACHER 
3531317 TEACHER 

2325909 TEACHER 
3590293 TEACHER 



 
 

 
 

 

 
  

 
  

 
 
   

  
 

  
 
 

 
   

 

 

 
  

  
  

 
   

 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

TIMMES, PATRICK 
TINGLE, NICOLE 
TOLIVER, DARCEL 
TRAGER, ALLISON 
TRIMBOLI, MATTHEW 

TULLOCH, WAYNE 
STEPHENS, SARAH-JANE 
STEWART, JORDEN 
STEWART, TONY 
TELEMAQUE, IVA 
THIELER, MICHAEL 
THOMAS JR, DARRELL 
THOMPSON, KARLENE 
TOMLINSON, WAYNE 
TORIBIO, TIFFANY 
TUCKER, SHONTAY 
TURCIOS, JOAQUIN 
VILLANUEVA, LUIS 
VERNON, TERRENCE 
VOLLBRACHT, DENISE 

WALKER, DANIEL 

WHITE, SHARON 
WALCOTT, LOANNA 
WALKER, SHANAKAY 
WALLACE, DAVID 
WELLINGTON, TRUDY 
WILLIAMS, ODDETTE 

WILLIAMSON, AMORIE 
WOLCOTT, EMILY 
WILLIAMS, CLAUD 
WILLIAMS, PRIMROSE 
WILLIAMS, JOHN 
WILLIAMS, ANNESHA 
WILLIAMS, NICOLE 
WOLPERT, TRISHA 
WORKMAN, ALYSSA 
XAVIER, JOANIE 

3882973 TEACHER 
3968761 TEACHER 
1897298 TEACHER 
2389376 TEACHER 
2194512 TEACHER 

3894750 TEACHER 
FOOD SERVICES 
CUSTODIAN 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
CUSTODIAN 
SECURITY 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
SECURITY 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
SECURITY 
CUSTODIAN 
CUSTODIAN 

2070303 DEAN OF STUDENTS 
2342412 TEACHER 

2367355 TEACHER 

1291982 TEACHER 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
SECURITY 

1816688 DIRECTOR ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 

3890448 TEACHER 
3567039 TEACHER 

CUSTODIAN 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
TEACHING ASSISTANT 
FOOD SERVICES 

2176393 ASST PRINCIPAL 
2388678 TEACHER 
3545559 TEACHER 



 
 

ZARRINFAR, LADAN 3836073 TEACHER 
ZUHOSKI, KEVIN 2401036 TEACHER 



ORIG_HIRE_DATE YEARS_PROFESSION YEARS_DISTRICT CERTIFIED_IND 
8/12/2019 1 
8/19/2013 9 

11/14/2016 4 

11/14/2016 4 
1/4/2021 1 

9/12/2018 2 
8/16/2017 4 

8/21/2019 1 
11/18/2019 1 

8/17/2015 5 
12/17/2012 7 

8/19/2019 1 
2/24/2014 9 

2/2/2018 3 
9/12/2012 8 
8/18/2014 7 
12/4/2017 3 

11/16/2015 11 
8/28/2018 2 

8/17/2020 1 

9/24/2018 2 
9/1/2017 14 

12/9/2015 8 
8/22/2016 6 
2/12/2018 1 
8/17/2020 1 
8/16/2018 2 

8/22/2016 22 

1 Yes 
7 No 
4 No 

3 No 
1 Yes 

2 No 
3 Yes 

1 No 
1 No 
5 No 
7 No 
1 No 
6 Yes 
3 No 
8 No 
7 No 
3 No 

11 No 
2 No 

1 No 

2 No 
6 Yes 

4 No 
4 Yes 
1 Yes 
1 Yes 
2 Yes 

4 No 

10/26/2020 1 1 No 



8/16/2017 5 3 No 

10/31/2016 4 4 No 
11/12/2019 1 1 No 

8/22/2016 8 4 Yes 
8/17/2009 11 11 No 

7/6/2015 5 5 No 
9/24/2018 2 2 No 

11/18/2019 1 1 No 
8/19/2019 1 1 No 

9/9/2019 1 1 No 
8/19/2019 1 1 No 
2/24/2020 1 1 No 
8/24/2015 5 5 No 
3/15/2018 3 3 No 
1/13/2020 1 1 No 
8/22/2016 5 4 No 
8/16/2018 6 2 Yes 

11/26/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
1/28/2019 2 2 Yes 

9/6/2016 4 4 No 
6/28/2018 2 2 No 

1/8/2018 2 2 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 No 

6/4/2018 2 2 No 
11/13/2017 4 2 Yes 

1/18/2021 1 1 Yes 

8/12/2019 1 1 No 

8/19/2019 1 1 No 

8/19/2013 38 7 No 
8/17/2011 9 9 No 
8/16/2017 4 3 No 

1/5/2015 1 1 No 
8/31/2018 5 2 Yes 



8/19/2019 15 1 No 
8/21/2018 6 2 Yes 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/16/2017 9 3 Yes 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/17/2009 17 11 Yes 
1/11/2010 10 10 No 
9/12/2018 2 2 No 
4/20/2009 11 11 No 
8/18/2010 14 10 No 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/20/2012 1 1 No 
8/15/2018 2 2 Yes 

8/12/2019 1 1 No 
11/4/2019 1 1 No 
9/24/2018 2 2 No 

10/21/2019 1 1 No 
9/18/2017 1 1 No 

5/1/2019 2 2 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 No 

9/17/2018 2 2 No 
8/17/2015 7 5 Yes 

8/17/2020 1 1 No 
4/1/2019 2 2 No 

10/10/2017 3 3 No 
3/28/2016 5 5 No 
11/7/2019 2 2 No 

8/9/2010 10 10 No 
3/23/2020 1 1 No 
8/18/2014 9 6 No 

8/16/2018 2 2 No 
8/19/2019 3 1 Yes 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/17/2015 16 5 No 

1 1 
9/3/2019 1 1 No 



11/16/2015 7 4 No 

9/4/2018 2 2 No 

11/14/2017 4 2 No 
7/6/2018 5 2 Yes 

8/18/2014 12 6 Yes 
9/6/2016 3 3 No 

12/10/2018 2 2 No 
8/20/2014 6 6 No 

8/9/2010 14 10 No 
2/3/2020 1 1 No 

12/11/2019 1 1 No 
7/22/2019 1 1 No 

8/17/2020 1 1 No 
8/20/2012 10 8 No 

10/19/2019 1 1 No 

8/12/2019 1 1 No 
8/1/2014 7 7 No 

9/14/2020 1 1 No 

10/10/2016 4 4 No 

8/30/2017 1 1 No 
9/18/2019 1 1 No 
8/17/2009 11 11 No 
6/15/2021 0 0 No 

10/22/2018 2 2 No 
1/7/2019 2 2 No 

3/26/2018 2 2 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 Yes 

10/8/2018 2 2 No 
10/8/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/19/2019 1 1 Yes 

9/9/2020 1 1 Yes 



10/12/2020 1 1 Yes 
9/23/2019 1 1 Yes 
8/19/2013 7 7 Yes 

10/15/2018 2 2 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 No 

8/1/2019 1 1 No 
1/13/2020 1 1 No 
8/16/2018 10 2 Yes 

10/23/2017 3 3 No 
10/7/2019 1 1 No 
7/15/2013 2 2 No 
11/2/2015 5 5 Yes 

9/5/2017 3 3 No 
1/6/2020 1 1 No 
9/3/2014 6 6 No 
8/5/2019 1 1 No 

8/18/2011 9 9 No 
8/3/2020 1 1 No 

8/20/2020 1 1 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 Yes 
10/2/2017 5 3 Yes 

4/1/2019 2 2 No 
8/26/2020 1 1 No 
9/24/2018 2 2 No 
3/26/2018 5 5 No 
7/10/2018 21 2 Yes 

8/16/2018 2 2 No 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
1/17/2017 1 1 Yes 

8/17/2020 1 1 No 

10/31/2016 4 4 No 

8/12/2019 1 1 No 

8/16/2018 2 2 No 



8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 
8/17/2020 1 1 Yes 
10/2/2017 3 3 No 
7/22/2019 2 2 No 

10/12/2017 3 3 No 
9/2/2020 1 1 No 
9/6/2011 9 9 No 

8/16/2017 3 3 No 
8/16/2018 2 2 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 Yes 

8/19/2019 1 1 No 
8/22/2016 4 4 No 

8/1/2017 3 3 No 
9/23/2019 1 1 Yes 
2/25/2019 2 2 Yes 

12/7/2020 1 1 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 No 
1/21/2019 2 2 No 

10/17/2014 6 6 No 
7/11/2016 4 4 No 

8/28/2018 1 1 No 
8/16/2017 3 3 Yes 

11/18/2019 2 2 Yes 
12/17/2018 2 2 Yes 

8/22/2016 4 4 Yes 

8/16/2017 3 3 No 
10/29/2018 2 2 Yes 

9/4/2019 1 1 No 
9/8/2020 1 1 No 
8/1/2018 2 2 No 

9/21/2020 1 1 No 
10/22/2018 2 2 No 
11/16/2020 0 0 No 

8/12/2019 10 1 No 

9/17/2018 2 2 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 No 



9/15/2020 1 1 No 
8/19/2019 1 1 Yes 
9/12/2018 12 2 Yes 
8/28/2018 2 2 Yes 

9/25/2019 1 1 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 Yes 
8/22/2019 1 1 Yes 

8/18/2014 6 6 No 

9/8/2020 1 1 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 Yes 

10/15/2019 1 1 Yes 
7/29/2019 2 2 No 

10/15/2012 8 8 No 
7/15/2019 2 2 No 
8/16/2018 2 2 No 
9/18/2017 3 3 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 No 

5/7/2018 3 3 No 
9/24/2018 2 2 No 
3/16/2020 1 1 No 
8/17/2015 5 5 No 

9/8/2020 0 0 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 No 
10/8/2014 6 6 No 

3/9/2020 10 2 No 

3/2/2020 2 2 No 
8/7/2019 1 1 No 
2/3/2020 1 1 No 

8/17/2015 11 11 No 

8/20/2012 8 1 No 
8/31/2017 3 3 Yes 

10/17/2016 6 6 No 
9/27/2017 6 3 Yes 



10/2/2017 3 3 Yes 
8/27/2020 1 1 Yes 
8/22/2019 1 1 Yes 
1/14/2015 5 5 Yes 
8/29/2017 3 3 Yes 

8/17/2015 5 5 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 No 

7/8/2013 7 7 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 No 
7/15/2019 2 2 No 

9/8/2020 1 1 No 
8/22/2016 4 4 No 
8/19/2019 1 1 No 
5/12/2014 7 7 No 
8/17/2020 1 1 No 
1/13/2020 1 1 No 
1/13/2020 1 1 No 
4/29/2021 0 0 No 
8/12/2019 1 1 No 
2/12/2020 2 2 Yes 

11/9/2016 3 3 No 

8/17/2019 12 2 No 
9/8/2020 1 1 No 

2/11/2019 2 2 No 
2/11/2019 2 2 No 
7/22/2019 1 1 No 
8/24/2009 11 11 No 

8/16/2017 3 3 No 
8/16/2018 2 2 Yes 

8/3/2009 11 11 No 
8/18/2014 6 6 No 

7/1/2017 4 4 No 
8/16/2017 3 3 No 

10/29/2020 0 0 No 
8/17/2009 11 11 No 
8/29/2016 4 4 Yes 
8/20/2020 1 1 Yes 



1/3/2017 33 3 No 
11/23/2020 1 1 Yes 



  

           
       

  

           
       

  

           
       

  
   

   

   
   

           
       

  
           

       
  

           
       

  

           
       

  
           

       
  

REASON FOR NON-CERT 

Non-Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 

A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 

A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 
Instructional / Not Teaching 
Non-Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
B - 1. Mathematics 

Non-Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
Instructional / Not Teaching 
Instructional / Not Teaching 
Non-Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 
A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 

A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 

A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 
A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
classroom teaching experience 



           
       

  
           

       
  

   

   

   

           
       

  
         

     
  

           
       

  
   

         
     

  

A - i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Academy Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other matters 
Report on supplementary information required by New York State 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 22 to 27 are required by the 
New York State Department of Education who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 22 to 27 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The schedule of bonds covenants calculations, shown on page 28, is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, shown on page 29, as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
also not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Other reporting required by government auditing standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
22, 2021 on our consideration of The Academy Charter School internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering The Academy Charter School internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position 
As of June 30, 

2021 2020 
Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 1,248,677 1,336,393 
Due from government agencies 656,675 635,684 
Prepaid expenses 48,110 2,467 

Total current assets 11,775,939 9,283,991 

Property and equipment, net - Note 5 106,898,072 74,368,334 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves - Note 4 57,336,887 12,131,193 
Security deposits 72,090 192,090 

Total assets $ 176,082,988 $ 95,975,608 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable $ 4,208,002 $ 1,550,887 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 3,434,749 2,407,411 
Accrued interest payable 1,971,937 2,371,714 
Bonds payable - current portion - Note 6 1,495,000 1,075,000 
Loans payable - Note 13 - 2,500,000 
Deferred revenue 60,355 74,681 

Total current liabilities 11,170,043 9,979,693 

Loans payable - long term portion - Note 13 - 4,349,550 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $5,286,385 for 2021 and 
$3,755,857 in 2020) - Note 6 156,903,343 77,024,143 

Total liabilities 168,073,386 91,353,386 

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Undesignated 7,826,421 4,440,331 
Reserve - contingency 183,181 181,891 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 8,009,602 4,622,222 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 176,082,988 $ 95,975,608 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
4 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL  
Statements of Activities 
For the years ended June 30,
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended June 30, 

2021 2020 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets 3,387,380 $ 841,312 $ 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 3,324,927 2,612,640 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,400,643 147,382 
Forgiveness of debt (4,849,550) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts and grants receivable 87,716 269,389 
Due from government agencies (20,991) (111,108) 
Security deposits 120,000 (9,745) 
Prepaid expenses (45,643) 14,951 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 2,657,115 (2,113,992) 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 1,027,338 557,940 
Accrued interest payable (399,777) (26,980) 
Deferred revenue (14,326) (65,239) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,674,832 2,116,550 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (35,854,665) (9,327,960) 

Net cash used in investing activities (35,854,665) (9,327,960) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Payments on bonds payable (1,225,000) (910,000) 
Refunded bonds (21,975,000) -
Proceeds from bonds issuance 102,098,557 -
Draws on line of credit - 1,950,000 
Payments on line of credit - (2,600,000) 
Proceeds from loans - 6,349,550 
Repayments of loans (2,000,000) -
Obligations under capital leases - (13,282) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 76,898,557 4,776,268 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 47,718,724 (2,435,142) 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - beginning of year 19,440,640 21,875,782 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - end of year 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 $ 

Supplemental cash flow disclosures 
Interest paid 6,880,610 $ 5,623,923 $ 

Interest capitalized 2,240,268 $ -$ 

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash balances: 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 $ 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves: 

183,181 181,891 
39,547,346 3,268,616 

Interest reserve 5,229,230 1,717,263 
Debt Service 12,177,107 6,874,270 
Repairs and replacement 200,023 89,153 

Total restricted cash and escrow reserves 57,336,887 12,131,193 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 



     
 

  
 
 

 

   
 

            
              

            
               
              

                 
          

             
               

       
 

            
               

             
            

 
       

       
            

    
 
 

       
 
               

      
 

    
            

            
            
           

            
           

       
 

              
            

            
                

  
 

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 1 Organization 

The Academy Charter School ( , a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization, is a public 
charter school located in Hempstead, New York. The School opened in February 2009 and 
commenced operating classes for kindergarten through second grade in September 2009, and 
added third through eleventh grade classes in 2010 through 2019. In fiscal year 2020, TACS 
added twelfth grade reaching full capacity during the 2019-20 school year. The TACS charter 
was renewed in 2019 for an additional five years. The mission of TACS is to offer an 
interdisciplinary curriculum in a technology-rich environment that challenges students to 
explore connections across subjects and use experiential learning to bridge the gaps between 
theory and practice. Enrollment is open to all potential student candidates, with a preference for 
those residing in the immediate area. 

Effective December 2017, The Academy Charter School Uniondale location received its 
charter approval from The State University of New York Charter School Institute. In 2020, The 
Academy Charter School Uniondale obtained a charter modification authorizing it to operate 
classes from kindergarten through sixth grade and ninth through eleventh grades. 

The Academy Charter School, He Academy 
Uniondale is referred to as 

Collectively, The Academy Hempstead and The Academy Uniondale will be 
referred to a The School 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of accounting. The financial statements of the School have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted . 

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements. 
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and 
Contributions Made (Topic 958). In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, 
Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Effective July 1, 2019, the School 
adopted ASU 2018-08. Key provisions of this guidance include clarification regarding the 
accounting for grants and contracts as exchange transactions or contributions, and 
improved guidance for conditional versus unconditional contributions. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). In May 2014, the FASB issued 
ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which establishes a 
new contract and control-based revenue recognition model, changes the basis for deciding 
when revenue is recognized over time or at a point in time, and expands disclosures about 
revenue. 

9 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

      
           

               
                 

    
 

                
   

 
           

          
 

             
              

   
 

              
              

                 
            

 
             

           
             

             
         

 
            

              
              
              

                 
 

             
             
           

       
 

             
         

 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements. (continued) 
For contributions, the School evaluates whether they are conditional or unconditional. 
Contributions are considered to be conditional when both barriers, the right of return of the 
assets and the right of release from the obligation, must be overcome for the School to be 
entitled to the revenue. 

Review of various provisions of both standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the 
School recognizes revenue. 

Financial statement presentation. The School reports information regarding its financial 
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of 
the School. 

Net assets with donor restrictions. Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, 
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met 
by actions of the School or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in 
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Revenue recognition. The School recognizes revenue from the state and local governments 
based on the number of students enrolled. Such revenue is 
recorded when services are performed, in accordance with the charter agreement. The New 
York State Department of Education mandates the rate per pupil. Revenue from these 
transactions is recognized ratably over the related school year. 

Grants and contracts revenue is recognized when qualifying expenditures are incurred and/or 
services are provided to the students during the applicable school year. Funds received in 
advance or any unspent funds for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred are 
recorded as deferred revenue. Any unspent amounts might be returned to the granting agency 
or the granting agency can approve that those amounts be applied to a future grant period. 

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and cash equivalents. The School considers all short-term, highly liquid investments, 
such as money market funds, to be cash equivalents. 

10 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

            
     

            
            

          
            

 
             

                
     
 

             
              

     
 

            
             

             
 

             
                

           
               

            
            
           

 
        

       
        
         

          
          

   
 

          
          

                 
 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Accounts and grants receivable. Accounts and grants receivables are recorded at net 
realizable value. The allowa f the 
amount of probable credit losses in existing receivables. Management determines the allowance 
based on historical write-off experience and reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts 
periodically. Past due balances are reviewed individually for collectability. Allowances 
recorded at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are $388,323 and $168,567, respectively. 

Restricted cash and escrow reserves. Restricted cash and escrow reserves relate to reserve 
and escrow accounts that are required to be maintained by the School in accordance with the 
bond indenture and charter requirements. 

Deferred revenue. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures have not been 
incurred are reflected as deferred revenue from state and local government grants in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

Donated goods and services. The School receives donated services from unpaid volunteers. 
No amounts have been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities, since the 
services do not meet the specialized skill criteria for recognition under U.S. GAAP. 

Property and equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Donated assets are 
capitalized at the estimated fair value at date of receipt. Maintenance and repairs are charged to 
expense as incurred; significant improvements are capitalized. The School capitalizes additions 
and significant improvements in excess of $500. Effective July 1, 2021, the School modified its 
capitalization policy to increase threshold to $5,000. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the respective asset. The estimated 
depreciable lives of the different classes of property are as follows: 

Asset Useful Life 
Building 39 years 
Building improvements 39 years 
Furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 years 
Computer and office equipment 3 years 

Depreciation charges for computer equipment financed through capitalized lease obligations 
are included in depreciation expense. Depreciation for construction-in-progress will commence 
over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets when the assets are placed in service. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Functional allocation of expenses. The costs of providing program and other activities have 
been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among program and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are 
determined by management on an equitable basis. The expenses that are allocated include the 
following: 

Expense Method of allocation 

Salaries and benefits Direct allocation; then time and effort 
Legal and professional fees Direct allocation; then time and effort 
Repairs and maintenance Time and effort 

Debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a 
direct deduction from the face amount of the bonds payable to which such costs relate. 
Amortization of debt issuance costs is reported as a component of interest expense and is 
computed using a straight-line method over the term of the related debt. Accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require that the effective yield method be 
used to amortize financing costs; however, the effect of using the straight-line method is not 
materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the effective yield 
method. Amortization expenses for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,400,643 
and $147,382, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2021, unamortized debt issuance 
costs in the amount of $1,239,250 were written off as a result of the related debt extinguishment 
as described in Note 6. 

Income taxes. The School is tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) and has been classified as a publicly supported organization as described in IRC sections 
509(A)(1) and 170(B)(1)(A)(II). 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management 
to evaluate tax positions taken and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the School has taken an 
uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by taxing 
authorities. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken and has concluded that, as of June 
30, 2021, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require 
recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements. Periods ending June 30, 
2018 and subsequent remain subject to examination by the taxing authorities. 

Operating risk. The coronavirus outbreak may have an adverse effect on the results of 
operations. Given the uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future spread or 
mitigation of the coronavirus and around the imposition or relaxation of protective measures, 
the School cannot reasonably estimate the impact to future results of operations. 

12 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

             
              

            
            
                 
               
               
            
            

 
           

             
            
            

 
 

                 
  

 
 

     
 

               
                

  
 
       

           
             

           

       
   

 
       

 
               
               

              
             

      

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

New accounting pronouncements. In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 
which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption 
permitted. In addition to expanded disclosure requirements regarding leasing activities, the new 
standard significantly changes current lessee accounting for operating leases. Under the new 
standard all lessees will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the 
statement of financial position for all leases of property and equipment, except for certain leases 
classified as short-term leases. The new standard requires lessors to account for leases using an 
approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sale-type leases, direct 
financing leases and operating leases; however, it expands disclosure requirements for lessors. 

FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for 
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which becomes effective for the June 30, 2022. This ASU 
focuses on improving transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets and 
requires a separate line-item presentation on the statement of activities and additional 
disclosures. 

The School is in the process of evaluating the impact these standards will have on the future 
financial statements. 

Note 3 Liquidity and availability 

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without 
donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise 
the following: 

2021 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
Accounts and grants receivable net 1,248,677 1,336,393 
Due from government agencies 656,675 635,684 

Total financial assets available for general expenditures 
within one year $ 11,727,829 $ 9,281,524 

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions which would 
make them unavailable for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date. The 
School structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and 
other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the School may 
borrow from the available credit line. 

13 



     
 

  
 
 

 

       
 

                
 

    
           
            

               
                

           
            

            

           

 
    
           
            

               
                

           
            

              

           

 
 

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 4 Restricted cash and escrow reserves 

Restricted cash and escrow reserve accounts as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

2021 

Restricted cash contingency 
Restricted cash held by trustee 
Interest reserve 
Debt Service 
Repairs and replacement 

Total 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 81,059 
4,104,124 
1,033,326 
7,407,115 

100,012 

$ 12,725,636 

The Academy 
- Uniondale 

$ 102,122 
35,443,222 

4,195,904 
4,769,992 

100,011 

$ 44,611,251 

$ 

$ 

Total 

183,181 
39,547,346 

5,229,230 
12,177,107 

200,023 

57,336,887 

Restricted cash contingency 
Restricted cash held by trustee 
Interest reserve 
Debt Service 
Repairs and replacement 

Total 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 80,782 
2,600,927 

996,248 
5,132,795 

89,153 

$ 8,899,905 

2020 
The Academy 

- Uniondale 

$ 101,109 
667,689 
721,015 

1,741,475 
-

$ 3,231,288 

$ 

$ 

Total 

181,891 
3,268,616 
1,717,263 
6,874,270 

89,153 

12,131,193 

14 



     
 

  
 
 

 

     
 

           
 

  
  

                                          
        

           
            

                 
                                   

             
                                    

          

                         
                         

                   

  
  

                                          
                        

                                  
                                   

                                                   
                                                

                                    
                                   

                           
                                

                     

 
 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 5 Property and equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30,: 

Land 
Building 
Building improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Educational equipment 
Computer and office equipment 
Software 
Construction in progress 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 790,000 
53,872,158 
4,256,074 
2,316,671 

5,000 
400,992 

4,555,481 
-

11,143,653 

2021 
The Academy 

- Uniondale 
$ -

16,313,429 
1,385,837 

325,933 
74,035 

-
1,293,934 

50,956 
23,317,823 

$ 
Total 

790,000 
70,185,587 
5,641,911 
2,642,604 

79,035 
400,992 

5,849,415 
50,956 

34,461,476 

Total property and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

77,340,029 
(11,578,751) 

42,761,947 
(1,625,153) 

120,101,976 
(13,203,904) 

Property and equipment, net $ 65,761,278 $ 41,136,794 $ 106,898,072 

2020 

Land 
Building 
Building improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Educational equipment 
Computer and office equipment 
Construction in progress 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 790,000 
53,872,158 
4,119,523 
2,255,431 

5,000 
276,934 

3,348,036 
271,712 

The Academy 
- Uniondale 

$ -
16,313,429 

127,330 
141,152 

5,795 
-

339,423 
2,381,388 

$ 
Total 

790,000 
70,185,587 
4,246,853 
2,396,583 

10,795 
276,934 

3,687,459 
2,653,100 

Total property and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

64,938,794 
(9,069,378) 

19,308,517 
(809,599) 

84,247,311 
(9,878,977) 

Property and equipment, net $ 55,869,416 $ 18,498,918 $ 74,368,334 

15 



     
 

  
 
 

 

     
 

            
            

            
              

           
                

                
             

               
    

 
            

            
         

              
         

              
               

               
              

        
 

            
            

            
              
         
             
              

             
   

 
            

            
            

              
         
             
                

      
 

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable 

On March 23, 2011, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $10,505,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

, bearing interest at 8.25% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2041, as well as $235,000 in Taxable 
Education Revenue Bonds (the 2011B Bonds nterest at 8% per annum. The 
Series 2011B Bonds were repaid fully on February 1, 2014. The proceeds of the bonds were 
used to purchase and renovate a two-story building at Hempstead, New York, to be used as 
classroom, cafeteria, kitchen, and administration space for The Academy Hempstead. On July 
1, 2020, the outstanding Series 2011A Bonds were refunded using the proceeds from the Series 
2020 Bonds described below. 

On December 23, 2013, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $12,970,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

013A 5% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2044, as well as $545,000 in Taxable 
Education Revenue Bo aring interest rate at 7.25% per 
annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2019. 
The proceeds of the bonds were used to purchase and renovate a four-story building at 
Hempstead, New York, to be used as classroom and administration space for The Academy 
Hempstead. On July 1, 2020, the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds were refunded using the 
proceeds from the Series 2020 Bonds described below. 

On August 10, 2017, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $35,900,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

2017 ing interest from 5.45% to 6.24% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2047, as well as $2,685,000 in 
Taxable Education Revenue Bonds ( 2017B Bond terest rate at 
6.59%% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2024. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the acquisition, construction, 
equipment, and furnishing of an approximately 112,500 square foot building for The Academy 

Hempstead. 

On June 26, 2018, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $19,520,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

2018 aring interest from 6.47% to 7.24% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2048, as well as $1,945,000 in 
Taxable Education Revenue Bon s 2018B Bond bearing interest rate at 
7.24%% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2027. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the acquisition and renovation of 
building for The Academy Uniondale. 

16 



     
 

  
 
 

 

       
 

             
         

            
              

      
              

              
             
                  

             
               

               
            

             
        

 
            

            
            

             
   

                  
             

           
              

       
             

     
            

               
                
                 

              
           

              
   

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable (continued) 

On July 1, 2020, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided financing 
through the issuance of $35,860,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue 
2020 st from 4.76% to 5.73% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2050, as well as $22,135,000 in Tax-Exempt 
Education Revenue Refunding es 2020B from 
4.76% to 5.66% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity 
on February 1, 2044, and a $945,000 Taxable Education Revenue Bond (the Series 2020C 
Bonds ), bearing interest at 6.00% due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2025. The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance and refinance the costs 
of certain charter school facilities for both Hempstead and Uniondale campuses. Portion of 
proceeds to be used to refund outstanding amounts on Series 2011A and Series 2013A bonds. 
Additionally, the funds to be used for construction, equipping and furnishing of a 30,000 square 
foot, 3 story building for the Hempstead elementary school annex; interior renovation, 
equipping and furnishing of a Uniondale campus building; and a construction of additional 
40,000 square foot facilities at the Uniondale campus. 

On May 21, 2021, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $45,965,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

ring interest from 4.05% to 4.60% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2051, and a $650,000 Taxable 

in full on 
February 1, 2025. The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance and refinance the costs 
of certain charter school facilities for Uniondale campus such as the acquisition and 
construction of an approximately 93,000 square foot, four-story addition to Uniondale's 
existing building situated on an approximately 5.7 acre parcel of land leased from Nassau 

Charles Lindbergh Boulevard, Uniondale, New York, 
and the acquisition and installation of certain equipment, furnishings and personal property for 

and together with the I 
21 Facility is to be used as classrooms, administrative areas and related 

educational uses as a charter high school, (B) paying capitalized interest on the Series 2021 
Bonds; (C) funding a debt service reserve, if required, for the Series 2021 Bonds, and (D) 
paying certain costs of issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds. Additionally, the funds to be used for 
construction, equipping and furnishing of a 30,000 square foot, 3 story building for the 
Hempstead elementary school annex; interior renovation, equipping and furnishing of a 
Uniondale campus building; and a construction of additional 40,000 square foot facilities at the 
Uniondale campus. 

17 



     
 

  
 
 

 

       
 

            
 

       

            
            
            
            
            
            

         

         
           

           

 
               

  
 
            

              
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        
                          

            

            
                

              

 
                  

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable (continued) 

The summary of bonds payable is as follows as of June 30,: 

2021 2020 

Series 2011 Bonds $ - $ 9,655,000 
Series 2013 Bonds - 12,705,000 
Series 2017 Bonds 37,440,000 38,030,000 
Series 2018 Bonds 21,365,000 21,465,000 
Series 2020 Bonds 58,790,000 -
Series 2021 Bonds 46,089,728 -

Total bonds payable 163,684,728 81,855,000 

Less: current portion (1,495,000) (1,075,000) 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (5,286,385) (3,755,857) 

Long-term bonds payable - net $ 156,903,343 $ 77,024,143 

Future minimum principal payments for the next five years and in the aggregate thereafter are 
as follows: 

The Academy The Academy 
June 30, - Hempstead - Uniondale Total 

2022 $ 1,200,000 $ 295,000 $ 1,495,000 
2023 1,275,000 315,000 1,590,000 
2024 1,585,765 719,235 2,305,000 
2025 1,679,527 1,705,473 3,385,000 
2026 1,765,256 1,799,744 3,565,000 
Thereafter 66,392,025 84,952,703 151,344,728 

Total bonds payable 73,897,573 89,787,155 163,684,728 

Less: current portion (1,200,000) (295,000) (1,495,000) 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (2,182,090) (3,104,295) (5,286,385) 

Long-term bonds payable - net $ 70,515,483 $ 86,387,860 $ 156,903,343 

As of June 30, 2021, the School was in compliance with all debt covenants pursuant to the bond 
agreements. 

18 



     
 

  
 
 

 

        
 

               
              

                 
 

                
              

           
        

     
 
 

     
 

                 
                 
                  

     
 
 

   
 

              
            

             
               

              
                

              
           

 
              
                

               
                 

                
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 7 Concentrations of credit and revenue risks 

The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The management 
of the School believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the School received approximately 81% and 92% 
of its operating revenue, which is subject to specific requirements, from per pupil funding 
primarily from the Districts of Hempstead and Uniondale, respectively. Additionally, the 

proximately 100% from the New York State Education 
Department and one other organization. 

Note 8 Line of credit 

In June 2020, the School obtained a revolving line of credit with a financial institution in the 
amount of $1,500,000. The line of credit bears interest of 5.75% and is due and payable upon 
demand by the bank. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding line of credit total balances 
were $0 for both years. 

Note 9 Contingencies 

The School participates in several federal and state programs. These programs require that the 
School comply with certain laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the 
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants 
and contracts are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, 
from such audits of government grants and contracts by government agencies is presently not 
determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the 
financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that 
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

The School is party to various legal proceedings incidental to their activities. Certain claims, 
suits and complaints arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed or are pending 
against the School. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, all such matters are 
without merit or are of such kind or involve such amounts that would not have a significant 
effect on the financial position or results of operations of the School, if disposed of unfavorably. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 10 Retirement plan 

The School offers a 401(k) plan for all qualifying employees. Employees are eligible for the 
plan immediately upon employment. Participation in the plan is voluntary. Employees can 
make contributions (pre-tax and Roth), up to IRS limits for each calendar year. The School 
matches an employ s contribution up to 4% of the e l compensation. For the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the e $525,801 and 
$383,936, respectively. Such plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the 
accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the 

ticipants and beneficiaries. 

Note 11 Accrued salary and other payroll-related expenses 

Accrued payroll and other payroll-related expenses consist of amounts earned by the staff 
during the school year, but paid over the summer months, including the related payroll taxes 
and benefits. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, accrued payroll amounted to $2,964,785 and 
$2,032,062, respectively. The other payroll-related accruals as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 
amounted to $469,964 and $375,349, respectively. 

Note 12 Ground lease agreement 

The School assumed a ground lease for the land on which the acquired Uniondale property is 
located. The ground lease is a 99-year lease at the time it was originated in December of 1980. 
The School has assumed the lease in 2018 until the end of lease term in 2079. The lease 
payments are subject to incremental increase, however the current lease payments are 
approximately $68,000 per annum for the next 10 years. 

Note 13 Loans payable 

A) To provide relief efforts to nonprofits and other small businesses during the pandemic, the 
government extended the Paycheck Protection Program ( PPP ), administered by the Small 
Business Administration to provide relief efforts to nonprofits and other small businesses with 
certain qualified business expenses pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic 

. In April 2020, the School obtained a $4,349,550 term loan under 
the PPP. The loan accrues interest at 1% per annum and matures on April 15, 2022. Payments 
are not required for the first six months after the funding of the loan. The loan is uncollateralized 
and is fully guaranteed by the Federal government. 

On June 14, 2021, the PPP loan was forgiven and recognized as a federal grant on the statement 
of activities for the full amount of $4,349,550. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 13 Loans payable (continued) 

B) In August 2018, the School obtained a loan from Charter School Growth Fund ( CSGF ) 
in the amount of $500,000 for the financial management and financing of the Uniondale 
facilities development. The loan is convertible to a grant upon meeting specific requirements 
and milestones as agreed with the lender. No payments of principal or interest are required until 
maturity. The loan bears interest of 1% per annum and has a maturity date of June 30, 2028. In 
July 2020, the School met the terms for forgiveness of the loan and it was converted into a grant, 
and recognized as a contribution in the statement of activities. 

C) In May 2020, the School obtained a short-term bridge loan from Charter School Growth 
Fund ( CSGF ) in the amount of $2,000,000 to assist with cashflow for the preconstruction 
costs incurred while awaiting financing from the 2020 Series Bonds issuance. The loan bears 
interest of 2.75% per annum and has a maturity date of July 14, 2020. The loan was paid in full 
on the maturity date, including the interest accrued. 

Total loans outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $0 and $6,849,550, respectively. 

Note 14 Subsequent events 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure 
through October 22, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued 
and has concluded that no subsequent events occurred that require an adjustment to or 
disclosure in the financial statements. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position: The Academy Hempstead 
As of June 30, 

Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 
Due from government agencies 
Due from The Academy - Uniondale 
Prepaid expenses 

$ 

2021 

5,209,336 
964,614 
574,924 
437,636 
48,110 

$ 

2020 

6,787,466 
1,127,758 

339,221 
243,448 

2,467 

Total current assets 7,234,620 8,500,360 

Property and equipment, net 65,761,278 55,869,416 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves 
Security deposits 

12,725,636 
42,165 

8,899,905 
162,165 

Total assets $ 85,763,699 $ 73,431,846 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable - current portion 
Loans payable 
Deferred revenue 

$ 2,873,803 
2,818,477 
1,018,343 
1,200,000 

-
49,787 

$ 1,326,803 
2,128,472 
1,771,406 

975,000 
2,500,000 

74,681 

Total current liabilities 7,960,410 8,776,362 

Loans payable - long term portion 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $2,182,090 in 2021 and 
$2,709,365 in 2020) 

-

70,515,483 

4,349,550 

56,705,635 

Total liabilities 78,475,893 69,831,547 

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Undesignated 
Reserve - contingency 

7,104,625 
183,181 

3,418,408 
181,891 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 7,287,806 3,600,299 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 85,763,699 $ 73,431,846 

22 



     
   

    
 
 

 

    
  
               

    
                         

                            
   

                       

 
                   

                       
                       

                    

 
                        

              

                            
                   

                          

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Activities: The Academy Hempstead 
For the years ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and other support 
Public school districts 
General education $ 

2021 

34,824,352 $ 

2020 

33,647,136 

Grants, contracts and other support 
Federal and state grants 
Contributions and private grants 
Interest and other income 

7,194,948 
2,086,935 

6,782 

1,869,593 
487,092 
118,737 

Total operating revenue and other support 44,113,017 36,122,558 

Expenses 
Program expenses 
Regular education 
Food service 
Special education 

29,573,453 
1,703,510 
1,620,686 

27,395,509 
1,633,109 
1,294,357 

Total program expenses 32,897,649 30,322,975 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 7,527,861 5,665,276 

Total program and supporting services expenses 40,425,510 35,988,251 

Change in net assets 
Net assets without donor restrictions - beginning of year 

3,687,507 
3,600,299 

134,307 
3,465,992 

Net assets without donor restrictions - end of year $ 7,287,806 $ 3,600,299 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position: The Academy Uniondale 
As of June 30, 

Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 
Due from government agencies 

$ 

2021 

4,613,141 
284,063 

81,751 

$ 

2020 

521,981 
208,635 
296,463 

Total current assets 4,978,955 1,027,079 

Property and equipment, net 41,136,794 18,498,918 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves 
Security deposits 

44,611,251 
29,925 

3,231,288 
29,925 

Total assets $ 90,756,925 $ 22,787,210 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable - current portion 
Deferred revenue 
Due to The Academy - Hempstead 

$ 1,334,199 
616,272 
953,594 
295,000 
10,568 

437,636 

$ 224,084 
278,939 
600,308 
100,000 

-
243,448 

Total current liabilities 3,647,269 1,446,779 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $3,104,295 in 2021 and 
$1,046,492 in 2020) 86,387,860 20,318,508 

Total liabilities 90,035,129 21,765,287 

Net assets without donor restrictions 721,796 1,021,923 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 90,756,925 $ 22,787,210 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Activities: The Academy Uniondale 
For the years ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and other support 
Public school districts 
General education $ 

2021 

9,272,521 $ 

2020 

5,083,685 

Grants, contracts and other support 
Federal and state grants 
Contributions and private grants 
Interest and other income 

746,413 
1,037 

220,672 

568,425 
23,167 

440,839 

Total operating revenue and other support 10,240,643 6,116,116 

Expenses 
Program Expenses 
Regular education 
Food service 
Special education 

7,465,132 
592,193 
391,263 

4,082,058 
280,337 
109,104 

Total program expenses 8,448,588 4,471,499 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 2,092,182 937,612 

Total program and supporting services expenses 10,540,770 5,409,111 

Change in net assets 
Net assets without donor restrictions - beginning of year 

(300,127) 
1,021,923 

707,005 
314,918 

Net assets without donor restrictions - end of year $ 721,796 $ 1,021,923 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Other Supplementary Information Schedule of Bonds Covenants Calculations 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Minimum 
Requirement Actual 

Debt service coverage ratio 

Days cash on hand 

The debt service coverage ratio is calculated as follows: 

Increase in net assets 
Add back: Interest expense 

Depreciation and amortization 
Net revenues available for debt service 

1.15 

45 

$ 3,387,380 
5,201,800 
4,725,570 

$ 13,314,750 

2.07 

78 

Debt service payments bonds 
Interest expense 
Principal 

Total current debt service bonds 

$ 5,201,800 
1,225,000 

$ 6,426,800 

Net revenues available for debt service 
Total current debt service bonds 

$ 13,314,750 
$ 6,426,800 

= 2.07 

The days cash on hand is calculated as follows: 

Total expenses 
Less: Depreciation and amortization 
Net expenses 

Days 
Cash used per day 

$ 50,966,280 
(4,725,570) 
46,240,710 

365 
$ 126,687 

Cash at year end 
Cash used per day 

$ 9,822,477 
$ 126,687 

= 78 

28 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Note 1 Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule ) includes the 
federal award activity of The Academy Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

niform . Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 
of The Academy Charter School, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial 
position, changes in net position or cash flows of The Academy Charter School. 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. The amounts reported as expenditures in this Schedule may 
differ from certain financial reports submitted to federal funding agencies, due to those reports 
being submitted on either the cash or modified cash basis of accounting. 

Note 3 Indirect Cost Rate 

The Academy Charter School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

30 





 

 

  
            

             
           
               

             
                 

               
     

 
    

                  
                

                
           

         
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

    
   

 
 
 
 

Compliance and other matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Academy Charter School s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the organiz internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 

ernal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, The Academy Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of The Academy Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Academy 
Charter School s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Academy Charter School s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Schedule I Summary of auditors results 

Financial statements 

Type of report the auditors issued on whether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

Federal awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
Considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported 

Type of auditor s report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Corrective Action Plan 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

None 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 
Other 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Deferred Rent 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Ristrictions 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS 

2020-21 2019-20 

$ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
1,248,677 1,336,393 

656,675 635,684 
48,110 2,467 

- -
11,775,939 9,283,991 

106,898,072 74,368,334 

57,408,977 12,323,283 

176,082,988 95,975,608 

$ 6,179,939 $ 3,922,601 
3,434,749 2,407,411 

60,355 74,681 
1,495,000 1,075,000 

- 2,500,000 
- -

11,170,043 9,979,693 

- -
156,903,343 81,373,693 

156,903,343 81,373,693 

168,073,386 91,353,386 

8,009,602 4,622,222 
- -

8,009,602 4,622,222 

176,082,988 95,975,608 

CK - Should be zero - -



   
 

   
     

    
  

                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                          

  
                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                             

 
                                                                                        
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      

                                                                                               
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                             

                                                                                                    

   

                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                          

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       

                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                           

  
    

   

    

     

  

     

   

    

2019-20 
Without Donor 

Restrictions 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total Total 

Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

Resident Student Enrollment 
Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts 
State and local 
Federal - Title and IDEA 
Federal - Other 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

$ 34,824,352 
-

-
7,194,948 

-
-
-
-

42,019,300 

$ -
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

$ 34,824,352 
-

-
7,194,948 

-
-
-
-

42,019,300 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

$ 29,573,453 
1,620,686 
1,703,510 

32,897,649 
7,527,861 

-
40,425,510 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 29,573,453 
1,620,686 
1,703,510 

32,897,649 
7,527,861 

-
40,425,510 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 1,593,790 - 1,593,790 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 

Foundations 
Individuals 
Corporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 
Net assets released from restriction 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 2,086,935 
-
-
-

6,782 
-
-

2,093,717 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,086,935 
-
-
-

6,782 
-
-

2,093,717 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,687,507 - 3,687,507 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

3,600,299 
-

-
-

3,600,299 
-

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 7,287,806 $ - $ 7,287,806 

$ 33,647,136 
-

-
1,869,593 

-
-
-
-

35,516,729 

$ 27,395,509 
1,294,357 
1,633,109 

30,322,975 
5,665,276 

-
35,988,251 

(471,522) 

$ 

$ 

487,092 
-
-
-

118,737 
-
-

605,829 

134,307 

3,465,992 
-

3,600,299 



    
                                                                      

    
 

     
                                                                

                                                                       
    

                                                   
                                                                            

                                                                  
                                                                        
                                                                       

                                                                                                       
                                                                                  

                                                                         
                                                                                                     

                                                                            
                                                                                                    
                                                              

    
                                                              

                                                                                                    
                                                        

    
                                                                     

                                                                 
                                                            

                                                          
                                                                  

                                                          

       

       

     

   
   

     

     

    

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 2019-20 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 3,387,380 
Revenues from School Districts -
Accounts Receivable 87,716 
Due from School Districts -
Depreciation 4,725,570 
Grants Receivable (20,991) 
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses (45,643) 
Accounts Payable 2,657,115 
Accrued Expenses 1,027,338 
Accrued Liabilities (399,777) 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources (4,849,550) 
Deferred Revenue (14,326) 
Interest payments -
Other 120,000 
Other -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 6,674,832 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment (35,854,665) 
Other -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (35,854,665) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt (3,225,000) 
Other 80,123,557 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 76,898,557 $ 4,776,268 

$ 841,312 
-

269,389 
-

2,760,022 
(111,108) 

-
-

14,951 
(2,113,992) 

557,940 
(26,980) 

-
-

(65,239) 
-

(9,745) 
-

$ 2,116,550 

(9,327,960) 
-

$ (9,327,960) 

(910,000) 
5,686,268 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 47,718,724 $ (2,435,142) 
Cash at beginning of year 19,440,640 21,875,782 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR 
ANNUAL BUDGET/QUARTERLY REPORT 

TEMPLATE TABS 

1- GRAY tab contains the Instructions 
Instructions Provides description of tabs and input requirements. 
Funding by District Charter School Tuition Rates 

2- BLUE tabs require input of information 
1.) Name of School >Select school name from list. 

>Enter contact information. 
2.) Enrollment Enter enrollment information for Annual Budget (& Revisions) and Quarterly 

Actuals. Includes: 
>Enrollment by Grade 
>Enrollment by District 

3.) Staffing Plan Enter staffing plan information for Annual Budget (& Revisions) and 
Quarterly Actuals. Includes: 
>Full Time Equivalent (FTE), by Position Category, By Quarter 
>"Prior Year" column may initially be completed based upon preliminary 
data, and subsequently adjusted with Annual Audited data when the 
Quarter 2 Actuals are being submitted. 

4.) Yearly Budget Enter Yearly Budget information. Includes: 
>"Prior Year" column may initially be completed based upon preliminary 
data, and subsequently adjusted with Annual Audited data when the 
Quarter 2 Actuals are being submitted. (Note: Quarterly Revenue allocation 
may be set) 
>Budgeted Enrollment data and Per Pupil Revenue for the current year are 
populated based upon input on tab "2.) Enrollment." 
>Budgeted FTE for current year is populated based upon input on tab "3.) 
Staffing Plan." 
>All other sources of revenue 
>All expenses 
>Budget Revisions, as necessary and approved by the school's Board of 
Directors, should be submitted when submitting Quarterly Actuals. 

5.) Balance Sheet Enter Balance Sheet information for EdCorps. Separate schools merged into 
a primary EdCorp should NOT use this tab. 
>"Prior Year" column may be initially completed based upon preliminary 
data, and subsequently adjusted with Annual Audited data when the 
Quarter 2 Actuals are being submitted. 

6.) Quarterly Report Enter Actual Quarterly Report information . Includes: 
>Actual Enrollment data and Per Pupil Revenue for the current year are 
populated based upon input on tab "2.) Enrollment." 
>Actual FTE for current year is populated based upon input on tab 
"3.) Staffing Plan." 
>All other sources of revenue 
>All expenses 

7.) Annual Report Requirement Complete when submitting Actual Quarter 4. 

CELL COLORS & GUIDANCE COMMENTS 

= Enter information into the light BLUE shaded cells. 

= Cells labeled in ORANGE containe guidance regarding the input of information. 

Ver. 20210524 

= Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner contain "guidance comments" on that particular line item. Please 
"mouse-over" the triangle to reveal each comment. 



      
          

   

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Academy Charter School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other matters 
Report on supplementary information required by New York State 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 22 to 27 are required by the 
New York State Department of Education who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 22 to 27 
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The schedule of bonds covenants calculations, shown on page 28, is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, shown on page 29, as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
also not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Other reporting required by government auditing standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
22, 2021 on our consideration of The Academy Charter School internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering The Academy Charter School internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position 
As of June 30, 

2021 2020 
Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 1,248,677 1,336,393 
Due from government agencies 656,675 635,684 
Prepaid expenses 48,110 2,467 

Total current assets 11,775,939 9,283,991 

Property and equipment, net - Note 5 106,898,072 74,368,334 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves - Note 4 57,336,887 12,131,193 
Security deposits 72,090 192,090 

Total assets $ 176,082,988 $ 95,975,608 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable $ 4,208,002 $ 1,550,887 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 3,434,749 2,407,411 
Accrued interest payable 1,971,937 2,371,714 
Bonds payable - current portion - Note 6 1,495,000 1,075,000 
Loans payable - Note 13 - 2,500,000 
Deferred revenue 60,355 74,681 

Total current liabilities 11,170,043 9,979,693 

Loans payable - long term portion - Note 13 - 4,349,550 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $5,286,385 for 2021 and 
$3,755,857 in 2020) - Note 6 156,903,343 77,024,143 

Total liabilities 168,073,386 91,353,386 

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Undesignated 7,826,421 4,440,331 
Reserve - contingency 183,181 181,891 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 8,009,602 4,622,222 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 176,082,988 $ 95,975,608 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
4 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL  
Statements of Activities 
For the years ended June 30,
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
5 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended June 30, 

2021 2020 
Cash flows from operating activities 
Change in net assets 3,387,380 $ 841,312 $ 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 3,324,927 2,612,640 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,400,643 147,382 
Forgiveness of debt (4,849,550) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts and grants receivable 87,716 269,389 
Due from government agencies (20,991) (111,108) 
Security deposits 120,000 (9,745) 
Prepaid expenses (45,643) 14,951 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 2,657,115 (2,113,992) 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 1,027,338 557,940 
Accrued interest payable (399,777) (26,980) 
Deferred revenue (14,326) (65,239) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,674,832 2,116,550 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (35,854,665) (9,327,960) 

Net cash used in investing activities (35,854,665) (9,327,960) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Payments on bonds payable (1,225,000) (910,000) 
Refunded bonds (21,975,000) -
Proceeds from bonds issuance 102,098,557 -
Draws on line of credit - 1,950,000 
Payments on line of credit - (2,600,000) 
Proceeds from loans - 6,349,550 
Repayments of loans (2,000,000) -
Obligations under capital leases - (13,282) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 76,898,557 4,776,268 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 47,718,724 (2,435,142) 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - beginning of year 19,440,640 21,875,782 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - end of year 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 $ 

Supplemental cash flow disclosures 
Interest paid 6,880,610 $ 5,623,923 $ 

Interest capitalized 2,240,268 $ -$ 

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash balances: 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 $ 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves: 

183,181 181,891 
39,547,346 3,268,616 

Interest reserve 5,229,230 1,717,263 
Debt Service 12,177,107 6,874,270 
Repairs and replacement 200,023 89,153 

Total restricted cash and escrow reserves 57,336,887 12,131,193 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 67,159,364 $ 19,440,640 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
8 



     
 

  
 
 

 

   
 

            
              

            
               
              

                 
          

             
               

       
 

            
               

             
            

 
       

       
            

    
 
 

       
 
               

      
 

    
            

            
            
           

            
           

       
 

              
            

            
                

  
 

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 1 Organization 

The Academy Charter School ( , a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization, is a public 
charter school located in Hempstead, New York. The School opened in February 2009 and 
commenced operating classes for kindergarten through second grade in September 2009, and 
added third through eleventh grade classes in 2010 through 2019. In fiscal year 2020, TACS 
added twelfth grade reaching full capacity during the 2019-20 school year. The TACS charter 
was renewed in 2019 for an additional five years. The mission of TACS is to offer an 
interdisciplinary curriculum in a technology-rich environment that challenges students to 
explore connections across subjects and use experiential learning to bridge the gaps between 
theory and practice. Enrollment is open to all potential student candidates, with a preference for 
those residing in the immediate area. 

Effective December 2017, The Academy Charter School Uniondale location received its 
charter approval from The State University of New York Charter School Institute. In 2020, The 
Academy Charter School Uniondale obtained a charter modification authorizing it to operate 
classes from kindergarten through sixth grade and ninth through eleventh grades. 

The Academy Charter School, He Academy 
Uniondale is referred to as 

Collectively, The Academy Hempstead and The Academy Uniondale will be 
referred to a The School 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of accounting. The financial statements of the School have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted . 

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements. 
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and 
Contributions Made (Topic 958). In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, 
Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for 
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. Effective July 1, 2019, the School 
adopted ASU 2018-08. Key provisions of this guidance include clarification regarding the 
accounting for grants and contracts as exchange transactions or contributions, and 
improved guidance for conditional versus unconditional contributions. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). In May 2014, the FASB issued 
ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which establishes a 
new contract and control-based revenue recognition model, changes the basis for deciding 
when revenue is recognized over time or at a point in time, and expands disclosures about 
revenue. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Recently adopted accounting pronouncements. (continued) 
For contributions, the School evaluates whether they are conditional or unconditional. 
Contributions are considered to be conditional when both barriers, the right of return of the 
assets and the right of release from the obligation, must be overcome for the School to be 
entitled to the revenue. 

Review of various provisions of both standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the 
School recognizes revenue. 

Financial statement presentation. The School reports information regarding its financial 
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of 
the School. 

Net assets with donor restrictions. Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, 
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met 
by actions of the School or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in 
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Revenue recognition. The School recognizes revenue from the state and local governments 
based on the number of students enrolled. Such revenue is 
recorded when services are performed, in accordance with the charter agreement. The New 
York State Department of Education mandates the rate per pupil. Revenue from these 
transactions is recognized ratably over the related school year. 

Grants and contracts revenue is recognized when qualifying expenditures are incurred and/or 
services are provided to the students during the applicable school year. Funds received in 
advance or any unspent funds for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred are 
recorded as deferred revenue. Any unspent amounts might be returned to the granting agency 
or the granting agency can approve that those amounts be applied to a future grant period. 

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and cash equivalents. The School considers all short-term, highly liquid investments, 
such as money market funds, to be cash equivalents. 

10 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

            
     

            
            

          
            

 
             

                
     
 

             
              

     
 

            
             

             
 

             
                

           
               

            
            
           

 
        

       
        
         

          
          

   
 

          
          

                 
 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Accounts and grants receivable. Accounts and grants receivables are recorded at net 
realizable value. The allowa f the 
amount of probable credit losses in existing receivables. Management determines the allowance 
based on historical write-off experience and reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts 
periodically. Past due balances are reviewed individually for collectability. Allowances 
recorded at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are $388,323 and $168,567, respectively. 

Restricted cash and escrow reserves. Restricted cash and escrow reserves relate to reserve 
and escrow accounts that are required to be maintained by the School in accordance with the 
bond indenture and charter requirements. 

Deferred revenue. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures have not been 
incurred are reflected as deferred revenue from state and local government grants in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

Donated goods and services. The School receives donated services from unpaid volunteers. 
No amounts have been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities, since the 
services do not meet the specialized skill criteria for recognition under U.S. GAAP. 

Property and equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Donated assets are 
capitalized at the estimated fair value at date of receipt. Maintenance and repairs are charged to 
expense as incurred; significant improvements are capitalized. The School capitalizes additions 
and significant improvements in excess of $500. Effective July 1, 2021, the School modified its 
capitalization policy to increase threshold to $5,000. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the respective asset. The estimated 
depreciable lives of the different classes of property are as follows: 

Asset Useful Life 
Building 39 years 
Building improvements 39 years 
Furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 years 
Computer and office equipment 3 years 

Depreciation charges for computer equipment financed through capitalized lease obligations 
are included in depreciation expense. Depreciation for construction-in-progress will commence 
over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets when the assets are placed in service. 

11 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

             
              
            

              
 

 
     

          
           

       
 

               
               

               
              
               

               
              

              
             

                 
     

 
               

               
   

 
            

                  
               

               
                

            
           

 
              
               

             
            

 
 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

Functional allocation of expenses. The costs of providing program and other activities have 
been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among program and supporting services benefited. Such allocations are 
determined by management on an equitable basis. The expenses that are allocated include the 
following: 

Expense Method of allocation 

Salaries and benefits Direct allocation; then time and effort 
Legal and professional fees Direct allocation; then time and effort 
Repairs and maintenance Time and effort 

Debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a 
direct deduction from the face amount of the bonds payable to which such costs relate. 
Amortization of debt issuance costs is reported as a component of interest expense and is 
computed using a straight-line method over the term of the related debt. Accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require that the effective yield method be 
used to amortize financing costs; however, the effect of using the straight-line method is not 
materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the effective yield 
method. Amortization expenses for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,400,643 
and $147,382, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2021, unamortized debt issuance 
costs in the amount of $1,239,250 were written off as a result of the related debt extinguishment 
as described in Note 6. 

Income taxes. The School is tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) and has been classified as a publicly supported organization as described in IRC sections 
509(A)(1) and 170(B)(1)(A)(II). 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management 
to evaluate tax positions taken and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the School has taken an 
uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by taxing 
authorities. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken and has concluded that, as of June 
30, 2021, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require 
recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements. Periods ending June 30, 
2018 and subsequent remain subject to examination by the taxing authorities. 

Operating risk. The coronavirus outbreak may have an adverse effect on the results of 
operations. Given the uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future spread or 
mitigation of the coronavirus and around the imposition or relaxation of protective measures, 
the School cannot reasonably estimate the impact to future results of operations. 

12 



     
 

  
 
 

 

         
 

             
              

            
            
                 
               
               
            
            

 
           

             
            
            

 
 

                 
  

 
 

     
 

               
                

  
 
       

           
             

           

       
   

 
       

 
               
               

              
             

      

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

New accounting pronouncements. In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases 
which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption 
permitted. In addition to expanded disclosure requirements regarding leasing activities, the new 
standard significantly changes current lessee accounting for operating leases. Under the new 
standard all lessees will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the 
statement of financial position for all leases of property and equipment, except for certain leases 
classified as short-term leases. The new standard requires lessors to account for leases using an 
approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sale-type leases, direct 
financing leases and operating leases; however, it expands disclosure requirements for lessors. 

FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for 
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which becomes effective for the June 30, 2022. This ASU 
focuses on improving transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets and 
requires a separate line-item presentation on the statement of activities and additional 
disclosures. 

The School is in the process of evaluating the impact these standards will have on the future 
financial statements. 

Note 3 Liquidity and availability 

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without 
donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise 
the following: 

2021 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,822,477 $ 7,309,447 
Accounts and grants receivable net 1,248,677 1,336,393 
Due from government agencies 656,675 635,684 

Total financial assets available for general expenditures 
within one year $ 11,727,829 $ 9,281,524 

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions which would 
make them unavailable for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date. The 
School structures its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and 
other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the School may 
borrow from the available credit line. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 4 Restricted cash and escrow reserves 

Restricted cash and escrow reserve accounts as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 

2021 

Restricted cash contingency 
Restricted cash held by trustee 
Interest reserve 
Debt Service 
Repairs and replacement 

Total 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 81,059 
4,104,124 
1,033,326 
7,407,115 

100,012 

$ 12,725,636 

The Academy 
- Uniondale 

$ 102,122 
35,443,222 

4,195,904 
4,769,992 

100,011 

$ 44,611,251 

$ 

$ 

Total 

183,181 
39,547,346 

5,229,230 
12,177,107 

200,023 

57,336,887 

Restricted cash contingency 
Restricted cash held by trustee 
Interest reserve 
Debt Service 
Repairs and replacement 

Total 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 80,782 
2,600,927 

996,248 
5,132,795 

89,153 

$ 8,899,905 

2020 
The Academy 

- Uniondale 

$ 101,109 
667,689 
721,015 

1,741,475 
-

$ 3,231,288 

$ 

$ 

Total 

181,891 
3,268,616 
1,717,263 
6,874,270 

89,153 

12,131,193 

14 



     
 

  
 
 

 

     
 

           
 

  
  

                                          
        

           
            

                 
                                   

             
                                    

          

                         
                         

                   

  
  

                                          
                        

                                  
                                   

                                                   
                                                

                                    
                                   

                           
                                

                     

 
 
 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 5 Property and equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30,: 

Land 
Building 
Building improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Educational equipment 
Computer and office equipment 
Software 
Construction in progress 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 790,000 
53,872,158 
4,256,074 
2,316,671 

5,000 
400,992 

4,555,481 
-

11,143,653 

2021 
The Academy 

- Uniondale 
$ -

16,313,429 
1,385,837 

325,933 
74,035 

-
1,293,934 

50,956 
23,317,823 

$ 
Total 

790,000 
70,185,587 
5,641,911 
2,642,604 

79,035 
400,992 

5,849,415 
50,956 

34,461,476 

Total property and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

77,340,029 
(11,578,751) 

42,761,947 
(1,625,153) 

120,101,976 
(13,203,904) 

Property and equipment, net $ 65,761,278 $ 41,136,794 $ 106,898,072 

2020 

Land 
Building 
Building improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Educational equipment 
Computer and office equipment 
Construction in progress 

The Academy 
- Hempstead 

$ 790,000 
53,872,158 
4,119,523 
2,255,431 

5,000 
276,934 

3,348,036 
271,712 

The Academy 
- Uniondale 

$ -
16,313,429 

127,330 
141,152 

5,795 
-

339,423 
2,381,388 

$ 
Total 

790,000 
70,185,587 
4,246,853 
2,396,583 

10,795 
276,934 

3,687,459 
2,653,100 

Total property and equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

64,938,794 
(9,069,378) 

19,308,517 
(809,599) 

84,247,311 
(9,878,977) 

Property and equipment, net $ 55,869,416 $ 18,498,918 $ 74,368,334 

15 



     
 

  
 
 

 

     
 

            
            

            
              

           
                

                
             

               
    

 
            

            
         

              
         

              
               

               
              

        
 

            
            

            
              
         
             
              

             
   

 
            

            
            

              
         
             
                

      
 

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable 

On March 23, 2011, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $10,505,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

, bearing interest at 8.25% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2041, as well as $235,000 in Taxable 
Education Revenue Bonds (the 2011B Bonds nterest at 8% per annum. The 
Series 2011B Bonds were repaid fully on February 1, 2014. The proceeds of the bonds were 
used to purchase and renovate a two-story building at Hempstead, New York, to be used as 
classroom, cafeteria, kitchen, and administration space for The Academy Hempstead. On July 
1, 2020, the outstanding Series 2011A Bonds were refunded using the proceeds from the Series 
2020 Bonds described below. 

On December 23, 2013, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $12,970,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

013A 5% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2044, as well as $545,000 in Taxable 
Education Revenue Bo aring interest rate at 7.25% per 
annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2019. 
The proceeds of the bonds were used to purchase and renovate a four-story building at 
Hempstead, New York, to be used as classroom and administration space for The Academy 
Hempstead. On July 1, 2020, the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds were refunded using the 
proceeds from the Series 2020 Bonds described below. 

On August 10, 2017, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $35,900,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

2017 ing interest from 5.45% to 6.24% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2047, as well as $2,685,000 in 
Taxable Education Revenue Bonds ( 2017B Bond terest rate at 
6.59%% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2024. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the acquisition, construction, 
equipment, and furnishing of an approximately 112,500 square foot building for The Academy 

Hempstead. 

On June 26, 2018, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $19,520,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

2018 aring interest from 6.47% to 7.24% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2048, as well as $1,945,000 in 
Taxable Education Revenue Bon s 2018B Bond bearing interest rate at 
7.24%% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2027. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the acquisition and renovation of 
building for The Academy Uniondale. 

16 



     
 

  
 
 

 

       
 

             
         

            
              

      
              

              
             
                  

             
               

               
            

             
        

 
            

            
            

             
   

                  
             

           
              

       
             

     
            

               
                
                 

              
           

              
   

 

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable (continued) 

On July 1, 2020, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided financing 
through the issuance of $35,860,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue 
2020 st from 4.76% to 5.73% per annum, with principal due at varying 
amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2050, as well as $22,135,000 in Tax-Exempt 
Education Revenue Refunding es 2020B from 
4.76% to 5.66% per annum, with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity 
on February 1, 2044, and a $945,000 Taxable Education Revenue Bond (the Series 2020C 
Bonds ), bearing interest at 6.00% due at varying amounts annually through maturity on 
February 1, 2025. The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance and refinance the costs 
of certain charter school facilities for both Hempstead and Uniondale campuses. Portion of 
proceeds to be used to refund outstanding amounts on Series 2011A and Series 2013A bonds. 
Additionally, the funds to be used for construction, equipping and furnishing of a 30,000 square 
foot, 3 story building for the Hempstead elementary school annex; interior renovation, 
equipping and furnishing of a Uniondale campus building; and a construction of additional 
40,000 square foot facilities at the Uniondale campus. 

On May 21, 2021, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $45,965,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (the 

ring interest from 4.05% to 4.60% per annum, with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2051, and a $650,000 Taxable 

in full on 
February 1, 2025. The proceeds of the bonds are to be used to finance and refinance the costs 
of certain charter school facilities for Uniondale campus such as the acquisition and 
construction of an approximately 93,000 square foot, four-story addition to Uniondale's 
existing building situated on an approximately 5.7 acre parcel of land leased from Nassau 

Charles Lindbergh Boulevard, Uniondale, New York, 
and the acquisition and installation of certain equipment, furnishings and personal property for 

and together with the I 
21 Facility is to be used as classrooms, administrative areas and related 

educational uses as a charter high school, (B) paying capitalized interest on the Series 2021 
Bonds; (C) funding a debt service reserve, if required, for the Series 2021 Bonds, and (D) 
paying certain costs of issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds. Additionally, the funds to be used for 
construction, equipping and furnishing of a 30,000 square foot, 3 story building for the 
Hempstead elementary school annex; interior renovation, equipping and furnishing of a 
Uniondale campus building; and a construction of additional 40,000 square foot facilities at the 
Uniondale campus. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 6 Bonds payable (continued) 

The summary of bonds payable is as follows as of June 30,: 

2021 2020 

Series 2011 Bonds $ - $ 9,655,000 
Series 2013 Bonds - 12,705,000 
Series 2017 Bonds 37,440,000 38,030,000 
Series 2018 Bonds 21,365,000 21,465,000 
Series 2020 Bonds 58,790,000 -
Series 2021 Bonds 46,089,728 -

Total bonds payable 163,684,728 81,855,000 

Less: current portion (1,495,000) (1,075,000) 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (5,286,385) (3,755,857) 

Long-term bonds payable - net $ 156,903,343 $ 77,024,143 

Future minimum principal payments for the next five years and in the aggregate thereafter are 
as follows: 

The Academy The Academy 
June 30, - Hempstead - Uniondale Total 

2022 $ 1,200,000 $ 295,000 $ 1,495,000 
2023 1,275,000 315,000 1,590,000 
2024 1,585,765 719,235 2,305,000 
2025 1,679,527 1,705,473 3,385,000 
2026 1,765,256 1,799,744 3,565,000 
Thereafter 66,392,025 84,952,703 151,344,728 

Total bonds payable 73,897,573 89,787,155 163,684,728 

Less: current portion (1,200,000) (295,000) (1,495,000) 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (2,182,090) (3,104,295) (5,286,385) 

Long-term bonds payable - net $ 70,515,483 $ 86,387,860 $ 156,903,343 

As of June 30, 2021, the School was in compliance with all debt covenants pursuant to the bond 
agreements. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 7 Concentrations of credit and revenue risks 

The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The management 
of the School believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the School received approximately 81% and 92% 
of its operating revenue, which is subject to specific requirements, from per pupil funding 
primarily from the Districts of Hempstead and Uniondale, respectively. Additionally, the 

proximately 100% from the New York State Education 
Department and one other organization. 

Note 8 Line of credit 

In June 2020, the School obtained a revolving line of credit with a financial institution in the 
amount of $1,500,000. The line of credit bears interest of 5.75% and is due and payable upon 
demand by the bank. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding line of credit total balances 
were $0 for both years. 

Note 9 Contingencies 

The School participates in several federal and state programs. These programs require that the 
School comply with certain laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the 
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants 
and contracts are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, 
from such audits of government grants and contracts by government agencies is presently not 
determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the 
financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that 
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

The School is party to various legal proceedings incidental to their activities. Certain claims, 
suits and complaints arising in the ordinary course of business have been filed or are pending 
against the School. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, all such matters are 
without merit or are of such kind or involve such amounts that would not have a significant 
effect on the financial position or results of operations of the School, if disposed of unfavorably. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 10 Retirement plan 

The School offers a 401(k) plan for all qualifying employees. Employees are eligible for the 
plan immediately upon employment. Participation in the plan is voluntary. Employees can 
make contributions (pre-tax and Roth), up to IRS limits for each calendar year. The School 
matches an employ s contribution up to 4% of the e l compensation. For the 
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the e $525,801 and 
$383,936, respectively. Such plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the 
accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the 

ticipants and beneficiaries. 

Note 11 Accrued salary and other payroll-related expenses 

Accrued payroll and other payroll-related expenses consist of amounts earned by the staff 
during the school year, but paid over the summer months, including the related payroll taxes 
and benefits. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, accrued payroll amounted to $2,964,785 and 
$2,032,062, respectively. The other payroll-related accruals as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 
amounted to $469,964 and $375,349, respectively. 

Note 12 Ground lease agreement 

The School assumed a ground lease for the land on which the acquired Uniondale property is 
located. The ground lease is a 99-year lease at the time it was originated in December of 1980. 
The School has assumed the lease in 2018 until the end of lease term in 2079. The lease 
payments are subject to incremental increase, however the current lease payments are 
approximately $68,000 per annum for the next 10 years. 

Note 13 Loans payable 

A) To provide relief efforts to nonprofits and other small businesses during the pandemic, the 
government extended the Paycheck Protection Program ( PPP ), administered by the Small 
Business Administration to provide relief efforts to nonprofits and other small businesses with 
certain qualified business expenses pursuant to the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic 

. In April 2020, the School obtained a $4,349,550 term loan under 
the PPP. The loan accrues interest at 1% per annum and matures on April 15, 2022. Payments 
are not required for the first six months after the funding of the loan. The loan is uncollateralized 
and is fully guaranteed by the Federal government. 

On June 14, 2021, the PPP loan was forgiven and recognized as a federal grant on the statement 
of activities for the full amount of $4,349,550. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 13 Loans payable (continued) 

B) In August 2018, the School obtained a loan from Charter School Growth Fund ( CSGF ) 
in the amount of $500,000 for the financial management and financing of the Uniondale 
facilities development. The loan is convertible to a grant upon meeting specific requirements 
and milestones as agreed with the lender. No payments of principal or interest are required until 
maturity. The loan bears interest of 1% per annum and has a maturity date of June 30, 2028. In 
July 2020, the School met the terms for forgiveness of the loan and it was converted into a grant, 
and recognized as a contribution in the statement of activities. 

C) In May 2020, the School obtained a short-term bridge loan from Charter School Growth 
Fund ( CSGF ) in the amount of $2,000,000 to assist with cashflow for the preconstruction 
costs incurred while awaiting financing from the 2020 Series Bonds issuance. The loan bears 
interest of 2.75% per annum and has a maturity date of July 14, 2020. The loan was paid in full 
on the maturity date, including the interest accrued. 

Total loans outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $0 and $6,849,550, respectively. 

Note 14 Subsequent events 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure 
through October 22, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued 
and has concluded that no subsequent events occurred that require an adjustment to or 
disclosure in the financial statements. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position: The Academy Hempstead 
As of June 30, 

Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 
Due from government agencies 
Due from The Academy - Uniondale 
Prepaid expenses 

$ 

2021 

5,209,336 
964,614 
574,924 
437,636 
48,110 

$ 

2020 

6,787,466 
1,127,758 

339,221 
243,448 

2,467 

Total current assets 7,234,620 8,500,360 

Property and equipment, net 65,761,278 55,869,416 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves 
Security deposits 

12,725,636 
42,165 

8,899,905 
162,165 

Total assets $ 85,763,699 $ 73,431,846 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable - current portion 
Loans payable 
Deferred revenue 

$ 2,873,803 
2,818,477 
1,018,343 
1,200,000 

-
49,787 

$ 1,326,803 
2,128,472 
1,771,406 

975,000 
2,500,000 

74,681 

Total current liabilities 7,960,410 8,776,362 

Loans payable - long term portion 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $2,182,090 in 2021 and 
$2,709,365 in 2020) 

-

70,515,483 

4,349,550 

56,705,635 

Total liabilities 78,475,893 69,831,547 

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Undesignated 
Reserve - contingency 

7,104,625 
183,181 

3,418,408 
181,891 

Total net assets without donor restrictions 7,287,806 3,600,299 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 85,763,699 $ 73,431,846 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Activities: The Academy Hempstead 
For the years ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and other support 
Public school districts 
General education $ 

2021 

34,824,352 $ 

2020 

33,647,136 

Grants, contracts and other support 
Federal and state grants 
Contributions and private grants 
Interest and other income 

7,194,948 
2,086,935 

6,782 

1,869,593 
487,092 
118,737 

Total operating revenue and other support 44,113,017 36,122,558 

Expenses 
Program expenses 
Regular education 
Food service 
Special education 

29,573,453 
1,703,510 
1,620,686 

27,395,509 
1,633,109 
1,294,357 

Total program expenses 32,897,649 30,322,975 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 7,527,861 5,665,276 

Total program and supporting services expenses 40,425,510 35,988,251 

Change in net assets 
Net assets without donor restrictions - beginning of year 

3,687,507 
3,600,299 

134,307 
3,465,992 

Net assets without donor restrictions - end of year $ 7,287,806 $ 3,600,299 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Financial Position: The Academy Uniondale 
As of June 30, 

Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts and grants receivable - net 
Due from government agencies 

$ 

2021 

4,613,141 
284,063 

81,751 

$ 

2020 

521,981 
208,635 
296,463 

Total current assets 4,978,955 1,027,079 

Property and equipment, net 41,136,794 18,498,918 

Other assets 
Restricted cash and escrow reserves 
Security deposits 

44,611,251 
29,925 

3,231,288 
29,925 

Total assets $ 90,756,925 $ 22,787,210 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and accrued expenses payable 
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable - current portion 
Deferred revenue 
Due to The Academy - Hempstead 

$ 1,334,199 
616,272 
953,594 
295,000 
10,568 

437,636 

$ 224,084 
278,939 
600,308 
100,000 

-
243,448 

Total current liabilities 3,647,269 1,446,779 

Bonds payable (less current portion; net of unamortized 
deferred financing costs of $3,104,295 in 2021 and 
$1,046,492 in 2020) 86,387,860 20,318,508 

Total liabilities 90,035,129 21,765,287 

Net assets without donor restrictions 721,796 1,021,923 

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions $ 90,756,925 $ 22,787,210 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statements of Activities: The Academy Uniondale 
For the years ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and other support 
Public school districts 
General education $ 

2021 

9,272,521 $ 

2020 

5,083,685 

Grants, contracts and other support 
Federal and state grants 
Contributions and private grants 
Interest and other income 

746,413 
1,037 

220,672 

568,425 
23,167 

440,839 

Total operating revenue and other support 10,240,643 6,116,116 

Expenses 
Program Expenses 
Regular education 
Food service 
Special education 

7,465,132 
592,193 
391,263 

4,082,058 
280,337 
109,104 

Total program expenses 8,448,588 4,471,499 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 2,092,182 937,612 

Total program and supporting services expenses 10,540,770 5,409,111 

Change in net assets 
Net assets without donor restrictions - beginning of year 

(300,127) 
1,021,923 

707,005 
314,918 

Net assets without donor restrictions - end of year $ 721,796 $ 1,021,923 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Other Supplementary Information Schedule of Bonds Covenants Calculations 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Minimum 
Requirement Actual 

Debt service coverage ratio 

Days cash on hand 

The debt service coverage ratio is calculated as follows: 

Increase in net assets 
Add back: Interest expense 

Depreciation and amortization 
Net revenues available for debt service 

1.15 

45 

$ 3,387,380 
5,201,800 
4,725,570 

$ 13,314,750 

2.07 

78 

Debt service payments bonds 
Interest expense 
Principal 

Total current debt service bonds 

$ 5,201,800 
1,225,000 

$ 6,426,800 

Net revenues available for debt service 
Total current debt service bonds 

$ 13,314,750 
$ 6,426,800 

= 2.07 

The days cash on hand is calculated as follows: 

Total expenses 
Less: Depreciation and amortization 
Net expenses 

Days 
Cash used per day 

$ 50,966,280 
(4,725,570) 
46,240,710 

365 
$ 126,687 

Cash at year end 
Cash used per day 

$ 9,822,477 
$ 126,687 

= 78 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Note 1 Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule ) includes the 
federal award activity of The Academy Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

niform . Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 
of The Academy Charter School, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial 
position, changes in net position or cash flows of The Academy Charter School. 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. The amounts reported as expenditures in this Schedule may 
differ from certain financial reports submitted to federal funding agencies, due to those reports 
being submitted on either the cash or modified cash basis of accounting. 

Note 3 Indirect Cost Rate 

The Academy Charter School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Compliance and other matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Academy Charter School s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the organiz internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 

ernal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, The Academy Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of The Academy Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Academy 
Charter School s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Academy Charter School s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe 
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 22, 2021 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Schedule I Summary of auditors results 

Financial statements 

Type of report the auditors issued on whether the 
financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

Federal awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
Considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported 

Type of auditor s report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Financial Statement Findings 

None 

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Corrective Action Plan 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 

None 
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